
The Mission of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District is to protect public health and the environment by providing effective wastewater 
collection, treatment, and recycling services. 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

 February 16, 2023 

On March 12, 2020, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-25-20, which enhances 
State and Local Governments’ ability to respond to COVID-19 Pandemic based on 
Guidance for Gatherings issued by the California Department of Public Health. The 
Executive Order specifically allows local legislative bodies to hold meetings via 
teleconference and to make meetings accessible electronically, in order to protect public 
health, which was due to end on September 30, 2021 (Exec. Ord. N-08-21). However, the 
Legislature passed AB 361 which provides local agencies with the ability to meet remotely 
during proclaimed state emergencies under modified Brown Act requirements, similar in 
many ways to the rules and procedures established by the Governor’s previous Executive 
Orders. - In light of this – the February 16, 2023, meeting of the LGVSD Board will be held 
via Zoom electronic meeting*. There will be NO physical location of the meeting. Due to 
the current circumstances, there may be limited opportunity to provide verbal comments 
during the meeting. Persons who wish to address the Board for public comment or on an 
item on the agenda are encouraged, but not required, to submit comments in writing to 
the Board Secretary (tlerch@lgvsd.org ) by 5:00 pm on Wednesday, February 15, 2023. In 
addition, Persons wishing to address the Board verbally must contact the Board Secretary, 
by email tlerch@lgvsd.org ) and provide their Name; Address; Tel. No.; and the Item they 
wish to address by the same date and time deadline for submission of written comments, 
as indicated above.  Please keep in mind that any public comments must be limited to 3 
minutes due to time constraints.  Any written  comments will be distributed to the LGVSD 
Board before the meeting. 
*Prior to the meeting, participants should download the  Zoom app at:
https://zoom.us/download. 

REMOTE CONFERENCING ONLY 
Join Zoom Meeting online at:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89383079979 

OR 
By teleconference at: +16699009128   Meeting ID: Meeting ID: 893 8307 9979 

1

mailto:tlerch@lgvsd.org
mailto:tlerch@lgvsd.org
https://zoom.us/download
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89383079979


February 16, 2023 Page 2 of 4 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

MATERIALS RELATED TO ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE FOR 

PUBLIC INSPECTION ON THE DISTRICT WEBSITE  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

NOTE:  Final board action may be taken on any matter appearing on agenda 

OPEN SESSION: 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on matters not on the

agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. Presentations are generally

limited to three minutes. All matters requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or

placed on a future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting.

2. CONSENT CALENDAR:

These items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion

unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the staff or the Board.

A. Approve the Board Minutes for February 2, 2023

B. Approve the Warrant List for February 16, 2023

C. Approve Board Compensation for January 2023

D. Approve Yezman attending NACWA Winter Conference Feb 13-16 in Sonoma

E. Approve Clark attending CSDA Emergency Preparedness Summit Feb 24 Webinar

F. Approve Resolution 2023-2299 Board Policies B-140 Board Meetings,  B-170 General Manager
Evaluation, 0-20 Environmental Practices and O-30 Emergencies 

G. Approve Resolution 2023-2300 Remote Meetings 

H. Approve Labor Negotiators of the District 

Possible expenditure of funds:  Yes, Item B through E. 

Staff recommendation:  Adopt Consent Calendar – Items A through H. 

3. INFORMATION ITEMS:

STAFF/CONSULTANT REPORTS:

1. General Manager’s Report – verbal

2. Board Policies B-180 Harassment Prevention – written

3. Collections/Maintenance/Safety Department Report – written

4. Operations Department Report – written

5. Quarterly Financial Report – written

6. Midyear Budget Report- written

7. Sewer Rate Study Parameters with Hildebrand Consulting - verbal

Estimated 
Time 

4:15 PM 

4:00 PM 

4:05 PM 

2

http://www.lgvsd.org/


February 16, 2023 Page 3 of 4 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

4. ORDINANCE 191 TIME AND PLACE FOR REGULAR MEETINGS

Board review and approve Ordinance 191 which amends the start time of Regular Board meetings.

5. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS:

1. CLARK
a. NBWA Board Committee, 2023 Operations Control Center Ad Hoc Committee,

Other Reports

2. FORD
a. NBWRA, 2023 Operations Control Center Ad Hoc Committee,

2023 McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 Fleet Management  Ad Hoc Committee,
Other Reports

3. MURRAY
a. Marin LAFCO, 2023 Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, CASA Energy Committee, Other Reports

4. ROBARDS
a. Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, 2023 Engineering Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,

2023 McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports

5. YEZMAN
a. Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  2023 Ad Hoc Engineering Committee  re: STPURWE,

Marin Special Districts, 2023 Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee,  Other Reports

6. BOARD REQUESTS:
A. Board Meeting Attendance Requests – Verbal

B. Board Agenda Item Requests – Verbal

7. VARIOUS INDUSTRY RELATED ARTICLES

CLOSED SESSION: 

8. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR  – Agency designated representative : Gregory Ramirez,
IEDA; Employee organization : IUOE Local 3:pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6

OPEN SESSION: 

9. ADJOURNMENT

6:00 PM 

6:05 PM 

6:30  PM 

6:00 PM

5:35  PM 

5:45  PM 

6:10 PM 

3



February 16, 2023 Page 4 of 4 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

 FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES: MARCH 2 AND MARCH 16, 2023 

CERTIFICATION:  I, Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, hereby 
declare under penalty of perjury that on or before February 13, 2023 4:00 p.m., I posted the Agenda for the 
Board Meeting of said Board to be held  by Zoom February 16, 2023, at the District Office, located at 101 
Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300, San Rafael, CA. 

DATED: February 13, 2023 

_______________________ 
Teresa L. Lerch 
Board Secretary 

 _________________________________________________________________  

The Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District meets regularly on the first and third Thursday of  
each month. The District may also schedule additional special meetings for the purpose of completing unfinished 
business and/or study session. Regular meetings are held at the District Office, 101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300, San 
Rafael, CA.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, 
please contact the District at (415) 472-1734 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Notification  
prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable accommodation to help ensure accessibility  
to this meeting. 

AGENDA APPROVED: Megan Clark, President Patrick Richardson, Legal Counsel 

4



 

 
 

 

2/16/2023 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on 

matters not on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley 

Sanitary District. Presentations are generally limited to three minutes. All matters 

requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or placed on a 

future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 1 

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



Resolution No. 2023-2300 Page 1 of 4

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-2300 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE LAS GALLINAS 

VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT PROCLAIMING A LOCAL EMERGENCY PERSISTS, 

RE-RATIFYING THE PROCLAMATION OF A STATE OF EMERGENCY BY 

GOVERNOR’S ORDER, DATED MARCH 4, 2020, IN CONTINUING EXECUTIVE 

ORDERS, AND RE-AUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS OF 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY 

DISTRICT FOR THE PERIOD OF FEBRUARY 16, 2023 THROUGH  

FEBRUARY 28, 2023 PURSUANT TO BROWN ACT PROVISIONS 

WHEREAS, the LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT (“District”) is committed to 

preserving and nurturing public access and participation in meetings of the Board of Directors; 

and  

WHEREAS, all meetings of LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT’s Board of 

Directors are open and public, as required by the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code 54950 – 

54963), so that any member of the public may attend, participate, and watch the District’s 

legislative bodies conduct their business; and 

WHEREAS, the Brown Act, Government Code section 54953(e), makes provision for remote 

teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, without compliance 

with the requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), subject to the existence of 

certain conditions; and 

WHEREAS, a required condition is that a state of emergency is declared by the Governor 

pursuant to Government Code section 8625, proclaiming the existence of conditions of disaster 

or of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the state caused by conditions as 

described in Government Code section 8558; and  

WHEREAS, a proclamation is made when there is an actual incident, threat of disaster, or 

extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the jurisdictions that are within the 

District’s boundaries, caused by natural, technological or human-caused disasters; and 

WHEREAS, it is further required that state or local officials have imposed or recommended 

measures to promote social distancing, or the legislative body meeting in person would present 

imminent risks to the health and safety of attendees; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors previously adopted a Resolution, Number 2023-2297 

January 19, 2023, finding that the requisite conditions exist for the Board of Directors of the LAS 

GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT to conduct remote teleconference meetings without 

compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of section 54953; and  

Agenda Item 2G

41



Resolution No. 2023-2300  Page 2 of 4 
 

WHEREAS, as a condition of extending the use of the provisions found in section 54953(e), the 

Board of Directors must reconsider the circumstances of the state of emergency that exists in 

the District, and the Board of Directors has done so; and  

 

WHEREAS, emergency conditions persist in the District, specifically, a State of Emergency has 

been proclaimed by Governor Gavin Newsom, dated March 4, 2020 and continuing; and 

 

WHEREAS, effective, March 1,  2022, the Public Health Officer of The County of Marin (“Health 

Officer”), in keeping with Health Orders from the California Department of Public Health, 

strongly recommends that  all individuals, regardless of vaccination status, continue to wear 

face coverings when indoors while in indoor public settings and businesses ; and 

 

WHEREAS, evolving COVID-19 variants (following the highly infectious Omicron variant and 

BA.2 Omicron subvariant) may continue to pose a significant risk to the health and safety of 

attendees at an in-person meeting of the Board of Directors of the District; and   

 

WHEREAS, the regular District Board room at 101 Lucas Valley Road, San Rafael, CA 94903 

used to hold public meetings is small with no windows that open to the outside; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors does hereby find that, as noted by the Governor, the 

California Department of Public Health and the Marin County Public Health Officer, that a State 

of Emergency continues to exist in regard to the Covid-19 outbreak and its Delta and Omicron 

variants, has caused, and will continue to cause, conditions of peril to the safety of persons 

within the District that are likely to be beyond the control of services, personnel, equipment, and 

facilities of the District, and desires to proclaim a local emergency and ratify the proclamation of 

state of emergency by the Governor of the State of California, the California Department of 

Public Health and the Public Health Officer of The County of Marin; and 

 

WHEREAS, as a consequence of the local emergency persisting, the Board of Directors does 

hereby find that the Board of Directors of LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT shall 

continue to conduct their meetings without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of 

Government Code section 54953, as authorized by subdivision (e) of section 54953, and that 

such legislative bodies shall continue to comply with the requirements to provide the public with 

access to the meetings as prescribed in paragraph (2) of subdivision (e) of section 54953; and   

 

WHEREAS, the District will continue to: 

 

1.  Clearly advertise the means by which members of the public can observe a public 

meeting or offer comment during a meeting remotely, via either a call-in or internet-based 

option; 

 

2.  Provide the relevant remote access information to members of the public looking to 

attend a meeting of a local agency legislative body. This information includes, but is not limited 

42



Resolution No. 2023-2300 Page 3 of 4

to: phone numbers, passwords, URLs, email addresses, etc., such that members of the public 

are able to attend the meeting remotely; 

3. Ensure that the public remains able to connect to a meeting and offer public comment

by the means previously advertised in the meeting notice or agenda; and 

4. In the event that meetings are interrupted by technological or similar technical

disruptions must first resolve those issues before taking any other action(s) on items on the 

meeting agenda. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY 

DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are 

incorporated into this Resolution by this reference. 

Section 2. Affirmation that Local Emergency Persists. The Board of Directors hereby considers 

the conditions of the state of emergency in the District and proclaims that a local emergency 

persists throughout the District, and due to the continuing Covid-19 pandemic and its Delta 

variant, which would present an imminent risk to the health and safety of the Board of Directors 

and members of the public at an in-person meeting due to the confined space in which the 

Board of Directors meeting are normally held.  

Section 3. Re-ratification of Governor’s Proclamation of a State of Emergency. The Board 

hereby ratifies the Governor of the State of California’s Proclamation of State of Emergency, 

effective as of its issuance date of March 4, 2020 and continuing through follow-up Executive 

Orders, the most recent being Executive Order N-5-22, issued February 28, 2022. 

Section 4. Remote Teleconference Meetings. The General Manager and Staff of the LAS 

GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT are hereby authorized and directed to take all 

actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this Resolution including, conducting 

open and public meetings in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) and other 

applicable provisions of the Brown Act. 

Section 5. Effective Date of Resolution. This Resolution shall take effect immediately 

upon its adoption and shall be effective until the earlier of (i) February 28, 2023, or such time the 

Board of Directors adopts a subsequent resolution in accordance with Government Code 

section 54953(e)(3) to extend the time during which the Board of Directors of LAS GALLINAS 

VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT may continue to teleconference without compliance with 

paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of section 54953. 

*     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     * 

43



Resolution No. 2023-2300  Page 4 of 4 
 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of a resolution duly and 

regularly passed and adopted by the Sanitary Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, 

Marin County, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on February 16, 2023 by the 

following vote of the members thereof: 

 

AYES, and in the favor thereof, Members:  

NOES, Members:  

ABSENT, Members: 

ABSTAIN, Members: 

 

       ________________________________ 
       Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary 
        
        
APPROVED:             
 
 
____________________________________ 
Megan Clark, Board President 

44



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\02162023\ASR Labor Negotiator.docx Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager 
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: February 16, 2023 

Re: Identify Labor Negotiator of the District for Upcoming Negotiations 

Item Type:   Consent   X  Action        Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to appoint Gregory Ramirez from IEDA as the Agency Designated Representative for labor 
relations consulting and labor negotiations. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The term of the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the District and Operating 
Engineers Local 3 (OE3) ends on June 30, 2023. Labor bargaining sessions with OE3 will be held 
during negotiations.  
 
The District Board is required by the Brown Act to meet in open session and identify its labor 
negotiator prior to meeting in closed session under the Labor Negotiations Exception. 
 
IEDA is under contract with the District to represent the interests of the District with regards to 
labor management. Gregory Ramirez has represented the District during the previous MOU 
negotiations.  
 
Dale McDonald, as Administrative Services Manager of the District, is responsible for 
management of Human Resources and is Co-Chair of the Labor Management Committee that will 
be involved during the negotiations. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
None 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
IEDA has previously been awarded the contract to represent the interests of the District with 
regards to Labor Relations Management.  Consulting services for fiscal year 2022-2023 have 
been approved in the budget. 

Item Number________2H______ 

GM Review   ____CP__________ 

45

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


 

 
 

 

2/16/2023 
 

 General Manager Report 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 3.1 

46



 
 

Page 1 of 1 

  Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

To: Board of Directors 

From: Teri Lerch, Executive Assistant/Board Secretary 
   (415) 526-1510; tlerch@lgvsd.org 

Mtg. Date: February 16, 2023 

Re: Board Policy Review of B-180 (Harassment Prevention Policy and Complaint 
Procedure) 

Item Type:   Consent    Action        Information X Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No     (See attached) Not Applicable     X        . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Attached for information and Board review is Draft Board Policy B-180 (Harassment Prevention 
Policy and Complaint Procedure). 
 
Board Policy B-180 was given to the District’s Labor and Employment Legal Counsel, Morin 
Jacob of Liebert Cassidy Whitmore to update. Enclosed are Legal Counsel’s red-lined revision, a 
draft LCW final version and the original policy. Staff will receive comments on the subject policy at 
the meeting and through February 22, 2023. 
 
Comments received will be incorporated or addressed prior to bringing back this policy to the 
Board for approval at the next Board meeting. 
 
The Board has requested to review and update Board Policy.  
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
None 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
N/A 

Item Number______3.2_____ 

GM Review   _____CP__________ 

 

47



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 

Resolution No. 2009-1872  Date Approved: July 9, 2009 

President of the Board Supersedes: 
Last Reviewed: February 16, 2023 

B-180 HARASSMENT, DISCRIMINATION AND RETALIATION PREVENTION 
POLICY AND COMPLAINT PROCEDURE 

Purpose 

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District (“District”) is committed to preventing harassment, 
discrimination and retaliation in the workplace.  

The purpose of this Harassment, Discrimination and Retaliation Prevention Policy and 
Complaint Procedure (“Policy”) is to establish a strong commitment to prohibit and prevent 
harassment and retaliation by and against the District's elected officials; to define those terms; 
and to set forth a procedure for investigating and resolving internal complaints of harassment, 
discrimination and retaliation. The District encourages all covered individuals to report—as soon 
as possible—any conduct that is believed to violate this Policy. Acts of harassment, 
discrimination and retaliation by anyone affiliated with the District, including its elected officials, 
are strictly prohibited and are subject to sanctions and disciplinary measures, up to and 
including termination. 

The District has zero tolerance for any conduct that violates this Policy. Conduct need not 
arise to the level of a violation of state or federal law to violate this Policy. A single act by a 
District employee may constitute a violation of  this Policy and provide sufficient grounds for 
the District to discipline the District employee.  

This Policy establishes a complaint procedure by which the District will investigate and resolve 
complaints of harassment, discrimination and retaliation by and against covered individuals.  

The District expressly prohibits any retaliation against an employee because they filed or 
supported a complaint or because they participated in the investigation or complaint resolution 
process. Individuals found to have retaliated against an employee in violation of this Policy will 
be subject to appropriate sanctions or disciplinary actions, up to and including termination.  

B-180-10 Covered Individuals and Scope of Policy. 

This Policy covers the following individuals: applicants for employment at the District; District 
employees regardless of rank or title; elected or appointed officials of the District; interns; 
volunteers; and contractors (“covered individuals”). 

This Policy applies to all terms and conditions of employment, internships, and volunteer 
opportunities, including, but not limited to, selection, hiring, placement, promotion, disciplinary 
action, layoff, recall, transfer, leave of absence, compensation, and training. 

 B-180-20 Definitions. 

B-180-20-1 Protected Classification. This Policy prohibits harassment, discrimination or 
retaliation because of an individual's protected classification. "Protected Classification" 
includes race, religion or religious creed, color, sex (including gender, gender identity, 
gender expression, transgender identity, pregnancy, and breastfeeding), sexual orientation 

LCW Final Draft no redlining

48



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 

Resolution No. 2009-1872  Date Approved: July 9, 2009 

President of the Board Supersedes: 
Last Reviewed: February 16, 2023 

(including heterosexuality, homosexuality, and bisexuality), national origin, ancestry, marital 
status, age (40 or over), medical condition, genetic characteristics or information, military and 
veteran status, physical or mental disability, or any other basis protected by law. 

This policy prohibits discrimination, harassment or retaliation for the following reasons: (1) an 
individual’s protected classification; (2) the perception that an individual has a protected 
classification; or (3) the individual associates with a person who has or is perceived to have a 
protected classification. 

B-180-20-2 Protected Activity. This Policy prohibits harassment, discrimination and 
retaliation because of an individual’s protected activity. 

Protected activity includes, but is not be limited to, the following activities: (1) making a 
request for an accommodation for a disability; (2) making a request for an accommodation for 
religious beliefs; (3) making a complaint under this Policy; (4) opposing violations of this 
Policy; or (5) participating in an investigation under this Policy.  

B-180-20-3 Policy Coverage. This policy prohibits discrimination, harassment or retaliation 
for the following reasons: (1) an individual’s protected classification; (2) the perception that an 
individual has a protected classification; or (3) the individual associates with a person who 
has or is perceived to have a protected classification. 

This Policy expressly prohibits elected officials from harassing, discriminating against, or 
retaliating against applicants, officers, officials, employees, contractors, or members of the 
public for any of the reasons enumerated above.  

B-180-20-4. Harassment. This Policy prohibits harassment of a covered individual because 
of the individual’s actual or perceived protected classification. Note that harassment is not 
limited to conduct that the District's employees take. Under certain circumstances, 
harassment can also include conduct taken by those who are not employees, such as 
elected officials, persons providing services under contracts, or even members of the public. 
Harassment may include, but is not limited to, the following types of behavior: 

Speech, such as epithets, derogatory, offensive or inappropriate comments, slurs, or 
stereotypical comments, or verbal propositions made on the basis of a protected 
classification. This includes, but is not limited to, comments, stories, and jokes about 
appearance, dress, physical features, gender identification, and race. 

Physical acts, such as assault, impeding or blocking movement, offensive touching, or any 
physical interference with normal work or movement. This includes, but is not limited to, 
pinching, grabbing, patting, propositioning, leering, or making explicit or implied job threats 
or promises in return for submission to physical acts. 

Visual acts, such as derogatory, offensive or inappropriate, posters, cartoons, emails, 
pictures, or drawings related to a protected classification. 

Unwanted sexual advances, requests for sexual favors and other acts of a sexual nature, 
where submission is made a term or condition of employment, where submission to or 
rejection of the conduct is used as the basis for employment decisions, or where the conduct 

49



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

Resolution No. 2009-1872   Date Approved: July 9, 2009  

President of the Board 
 

Supersedes:  
Last Reviewed: February 16, 2023 

 

is intended to or actually does unreasonably interfere with an individual's work performance 
or create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working environment. 

B-180-20-5 Discrimination. This Policy prohibits treating a covered individual differently and 
adversely because of the individual’s actual or perceived protected classification; because 
the individual associates with a person who is or is perceived to be a member of a protected 
classification; or because the individual participates in a protected activity as defined in this 
Policy. 

B-180-20-6 Retaliation. Retaliation occurs when an employer takes adverse action against 
a covered individual because of the individual’s protected activity as defined in this Policy. 

“Adverse action” may include, but is not limited to, the following actions: (1) disciplinary 
action; (2) counseling; (3) taking sides because an individual has reported harassment or 
discrimination; (4) spreading rumors about a complainant or about someone who supports or 
assists the complainant or who participates in the investigation; (5) shunning or avoiding an 
individual who reports harassment or discrimination; or (6) making real or implied threats of 
intimidation to prevent or deter an individual from reporting harassment or discrimination. 

B-180-30 Guidelines for Identifying Harassment. Harassment includes conduct that 
another individual who is a member of the protected classification would find unwelcome or 
unwanted. Harassment may include the following: 

B-180-30-1 Harassment includes conduct which would be unwelcome or unwanted to an 
individual of the recipient's same protected classification and which is taken because of the 
recipient's protected classification. 

B-180-30-2 Conduct that is not intended to harass. Conduct may violate this Policy if the 
conduct is directed at, or implicates a protected classification and the recipient finds the 
conduct to be offensive or inappropriate, even if its well-intentioned conduct (e.g., gifts, 
over-attention, endearing nicknames, hugs).  

B-180-30-3 Conduct to which the recipient appears to have consented. The District does 
not recognize as a defense that the recipient appeared to have "consented" to the conduct 
at issue by failing to protest about the conduct. A recipient may not protest offensive or 
inappropriate conduct for many legitimate reasons, including the need to avoid being 
perceived as insubordinate or to avoid being ostracized or subjected to retaliation. 

B-180-30-4 Conduct about which no employee has previously complained. Simply because 
no one has complained about a joke, gesture, picture, physical contact, or comment or 
substantially similar conduct does not mean that the conduct is welcome, inoffensive, or 
appropriate. The fact that no one previously complained does not preclude anyone from 
complaining if the conduct is repeated. 

B-180-30-5 Conduct witnessed by a third party or about which a third party learns, even if 
they did not witness the conduct.. Visual, verbal or physical conduct between two people 
who do not find such conduct offensive or inappropriate can constitute harassment if a 
third party witnesses such conduct or learns about the conduct later and finds the conduct 

50



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 

Resolution No. 2009-1872  Date Approved: July 9, 2009 

President of the Board Supersedes: 
Last Reviewed: February 16, 2023 

to be offensive or inappropriate. Conduct can constitute harassment even if it is not 
explicitly or specifically directed at a particular individual. 

B-180-30-6 Conduct can constitute harassment in violation of this Policy even if the 
individual engaging in the conduct has no intention to harass. Even well-intentioned 
conduct can violate this Policy if the conduct is directed at, or implicates a protected 
classification, and if the individual or an individual of the recipient's same protected 
classification would find it inappropriate or offensive (e.g., gifts, over attention, endearing 
nicknames, hugs). 

B-180-40 Complaint Procedure. A covered individual who believes they have been 
subjected to harassment, discrimination or retaliation may make a complaint to any 
supervisor, manager, District Counsel, or the General Manager without regard to any chain 
of command. 

Any supervisory or management employee who receives a harassment, discrimination or 
retaliation complaint should immediately notify the General Manager. Upon receiving 
notification of a complaint regarding discrimination, harassment or retaliation, the General 
Manager or their designee will complete and/or delegate the following steps: 

B-180-40-3 Within 24 hours of submitting the complaint to the General Manager, the General 
Manager shall inform, in a means designed to retain confidentiality, the District Counsel.  

B-180-40-4 Authorize and supervise the investigation of the complaint and/or investigate 
the complaint. The investigation will usually include interviews with the following 
individuals: 1) the complainant; 2) the accused (i.e., the subject of the investigation); 3) 
witnesses to the conduct at issue in the complaint; and 4) other persons who have relevant 
knowledge concerning the allegations in the complaint. Those informed of the investigation 
shall conduct themselves in a manner that will not compromise the integrity of the 
investigation, including, but not limited to, refraining from actions that may intimidate potential 
witnesses.  

The complainant and the accused have the right to be accompanied by an 
advocate(s) when discussing alleged incidents. Said persons shall be advised of this 
right prior to the commencement of such discussions. 

B-180-40-5 Review the factual information gathered during the investigation to 
determine whether the alleged conduct violated the Policy giving consideration to all 
factual information, the totality of the circumstances, including the nature of the 
conduct, and the context in which the alleged incidents occurred. 

B-180-40-6 Prepare a summary report of the determination as to whether the 
conduct violated this Policy and, if necessary, provide such report to the appointing 
authority (i.e., District Counsel or General Manager). If discipline or sanctions are 
imposed, the level of discipline or sanctions will not be communicated to the 
complainant. 

51



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 

Resolution No. 2009-1872  Date Approved: July 9, 2009 

President of the Board Supersedes: 
Last Reviewed: February 16, 2023 

B-180-40-7 If conduct in violation of this Policy occurred, take or recommend to the 
appointing authority prompt and effective remedial action. The remedial action will be 
commensurate with the severity of the offense. 

B-180-40-8 Take reasonable steps to protect the complainant from further harassment, 
discrimination or retaliation. 

If the General Manager or District Counsel is the accused, or is a witness to the events at 
issue, an individual with higher authority will complete and/or delegate the steps enumerated 
above. 

The District takes a proactive approach to potential violations of this Policy and will conduct 
an investigation if its supervisory or management employees become aware that harassment, 
discrimination or retaliation occurred or may be occurring, regardless of whether the recipient 
or third party reports a potential violation. 

B-180-50 Disciplinary Procedures and Sanctions. Upon conclusion of the investigation of 
alleged harassment, discrimination or retaliation, appropriate action shall be taken against the 
appropriate party where a violation of this Policy is found, including legal actions where 
appropriate. 

B-180-40-1 Appropriate action shall be taken to remedy the victim's loss, if any, resulting 
from the harassment, discrimination or retaliation. 

B-180-40-2 Action taken to remedy a harassment, discrimination or retaliation situation shall 
be done in a manner so as to prevent further violations. 

B-180-40-3 Elected officials and employees complaining of harassment shall be 
protected thereafter from any form of reprisal and/or retaliation. Any adverse conduct 
taken because an applicant, employee, elected official or contractor has reported 
harassment, or has participated in the complaint and investigation process described 
herein, is prohibited. This Policy protects those who make good faith reports of 
harassment, and those who associate with an individual who is involved in reporting 
harassment or who participates in the complaint or investigation process, from 
retaliation. 

B-180-60 Confidentiality. The District will make every effort to assure the confidentiality 
of complaints made under this Policy to the greatest extent allowed by law. However, 
complete confidentiality may not be possible because of the District’s need to investigate 
the complaint and provide the subject of the complaint their due process rights, which 
include providing the subject of the investigation a copy of the complaint after the initi al 
investigatory interview, if requested. 

The District expressly prohibits an employee who is interviewed during the course of an 
investigation from attempting to influence other employees, including employees who 
may have witnessed the underlying conduct at issue, while the investigation is open and 
ongoing. 

52



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 

Resolution No. 2009-1872  Date Approved: July 9, 2009 

President of the Board Supersedes: 
Last Reviewed: February 16, 2023 

An employee may discuss their interview with a designated representative from the 
employee’s employee organization and/or the employee’s legal representative. The 
District will not disclose a completed investigation report except as it deems necessary to 
support a disciplinary action, to take remedial action, to defend itself in adversarial 
proceedings, or to comply with the law or court order. 

B-180-70 Responsibilities. 

B-180-70-10 Each non-supervisor or non-manager is responsible for the following: 

1. Treating all individuals in the workplace or on District worksites with respect
and consideration. 

2. Modeling behavior that conforms to this Policy.

3. Participating in periodic trainings on personnel matters.

4. Cooperating with the District’s investigations pursuant to this Policy by
responding fully and truthfully and in a timely manner to all questions posed 
during the investigation. 

5. Taking no actions to influence the complainant or any potential witness while
the District’s investigation is ongoing. 

6. Reporting any act they believe in good faith constitutes harassment,
discrimination or retaliation as defined in this Policy, to their immediate 
supervisor or manager, District Counsel, or the General Manager. 

B-180-70-20 In addition to the responsibilities listed above, each manager and supervisor is 
responsible for the following: 

1. Informing employees under their supervision of this Policy.

2. Taking all steps necessary to prevent harassment, discrimination and
retaliation from occurring, including, but not limited to, monitoring the work 
environment and taking immediate and appropriate action to stop violations (e.g., 
removing inappropriate pictures or correcting inappropriate language). 

3. Receiving and responding to complaints in a uniformly fair and serious manner.

4. Documenting the steps taken to resolve such complaints.

5. Following up with those who have complained to ensure that the offensive
conduct about which they complained has stopped and that there have been no 
reprisals or retaliation or threats of reprisals or retaliation. 

6. Informing those who complain about harassment and/or discrimination of their
option to contact the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission or California Civil Rights 
Department and file a complaint about such activity. 

53



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 

Resolution No. 2009-1872  Date Approved: July 9, 2009 

President of the Board Supersedes: 
Last Reviewed: February 16, 2023 

7. Assisting and/or advising employees regarding this Policy.

8. Assisting in the investigation of complaints involving subordinate employee(s).

9. Where a complaint is substantiated, assisting in the development of a
recommendation concerning an appropriate corrective or disciplinary action in 
accordance with these policies. 

10. Implementing appropriate corrective or disciplinary actions.

11. Reporting potential violations of this Policy to the District Counsel or the
General Manager, regardless of whether an employee complained about such 
conduct. 

12. Participating in periodic training and scheduling employees for training.

B-180-80 Right to File Report with Outside Administrative Agencies. An individual 
possesses the right to report workplace harassment, discrimination or retaliation to the U.S. 
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) and/or the California Civil Rights 
Department (CRD). These administrative agencies provide a complaint process as well as 
certain legal remedies where the applicable agency determined that a violation of the law 
occurred. The nearest EEOC and CRD offices are listed in the government section of the 
telephone book, or employees can check the posters that are located on District bulletin 
boards for EEOC and CRD office locations and telephone numbers. 

54



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 

10354357.1 LA105-001  

B-180 HARASSMENT, DISCRIMINATION AND RETALIATION PREVENTION 
POLICY AND COMPLAINT PROCEDURE 

Purpose 

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District (“District”) is committed to preventing harassment, 
discrimination and retaliation in the workplace.  

The purpose of this Harassment, Discrimination, and Retaliation Prevention Policy and 
Complaint Procedure (“Policy”) is to establish a strong commitment to prohibit and prevent 
harassment and retaliation by and against the District's elected officials; to define those terms; 
and to set forth a procedure for investigating and resolving internal complaints of harassment, 
discrimination and retaliation. The District encourages all covered individuals to report—as 
soon as possible—any conduct that is believed to violate this Policy. Acts of harassment, 
discrimination and retaliation by anyone affiliated with the District, including its elected officials , 
are strictly prohibited and are subject to sanctions and disciplinary measures, up to and 
including termination. 

This Policy establishes a complaint procedure by which the District will investigate and resolve 
complaints of harassment, discrimination and retaliation by and against covered individuals. 

The District expressly prohibits any retaliation against an employee because they filed or 
supported a complaint or because they participated in the investigation or complaint resolution 
process. Individuals found to have retaliated against an employee in violation of this Policy will 
be subject to appropriate sanctions or disciplinary actions, up to and including termination.  

Policy 

The District has zero tolerance for any conduct that violates this Policy. Conduct need not 
arise to the level of a violation of state or federal law to violate this Policy. Instead a A single 
act by a District employee can may constitute a violation of violate this Policy and provide 
sufficient grounds for the District to discipline  the District employee, or other appropriate 
sanctions.  

This Policy establishes a complaint procedure by which the District will investigate and resolve 
complaints of harassment, discrimination and retaliation by and against covered individuals.  

The District expressly prohibits any retaliation against an employee because they filed or 
supported a complaint or because they participated in the investigation or complaint resolution 
process. Individuals found to have retaliated against an employee in violation of this Policy will 
be subject to appropriate sanctions or disciplinary actions, up to and including termination.  

Harassment against an applicant or employee by a supervisor, management, employee, 
elected official, co-worker, member of the public or contractor on the basis of race, religion, 
sex (including gender, gender identify, gender expression, transgender, pregnancy, and 
breastfeeding), national origin, ancestry, disability, medical condition, genetic characteristics 
or information, marital status, age, sexual orientation (including homosexuality, bisexuality, 
or heterosexuality), or any other protected classification will not be tolerated. 

Original LCW Draft Edits

55



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

10354357.1 LA105-001  

Policy 

This Policy applies to all terms and conditions of service as an elected District official 
and governs elected officials' conduct with each other, District employees, volunteers, 
interns, members of the public, and contractors. 

Appropriate sanctions will be instituted for prohibited behavior as defined below. 

Any retaliation against a person for filing a good faith complaint or participating in the 
complaint resolution process in good faith is prohibited. Individuals found to be retaliating in 
violation of this Policy will be subject to appropriate sanctions or disciplinary action, up to 
and including termination. 

B-180-10 Covered Individuals and Scope of Policy. 

This Policy covers the following individuals: applicants for employment at the District; District 
employees regardless of rank or title; elected or appointed officials of the District; interns; 
volunteers; and contractors (“covered individuals”). 

This Policy applies to all terms and conditions of employment, internships, and volunteer 
opportunities, including, but not limited to, selection, hiring, placement, promotion, disciplinary 
action, layoff, recall, transfer, leave of absence, compensation, and training. 

B-180-10 20 Definitions. 

B-180-1020-1 Protected Classification. This pPolicy prohibits harassment, 
discrimination or retaliation  because of an individual's protected classification. 
"Protected Classification" includes race, religion or religious creed, color, sex 
(including gender, gender identifyidentity, gender expression, transgender identity, 
pregnancy, and breastfeeding), sexual orientation (including heterosexuality, 
homosexuality, and bisexuality), national origin, ancestry, citizenship status, marital 
status, pregnancy, age (40 or over), medical condition, genetic characteristics or 
information, military and veteran status, and physical or mental disability, or any 
other basis protected by law. 

 

This policy prohibits discrimination, harassment or retaliation for the following 
reasons: (1) an individual’s protected classification; (2) the perception that an 
individual has a protected classification; or (3) the individual associates with a person 
who has or is perceived to have a protected classification. 

B-180-20-2 Protected Activity. This Policy prohibits harassment, discrimination and 
retaliation because of an individual’s protected activity. 

Protected activity includes, but is not be limited to, the following activities: (1) making 
a request for an accommodation for a disability; (2) making a request for an 
accommodation for religious beliefs; (3) making a complaint under this Policy; (4) 
opposing violations of this Policy; or (5) participating in an investigation under this 
Policy.  

56



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

10354357.1 LA105-001  

B-180-1020-2 3 Policy Coverage. This policy prohibits discrimination, harassment or 
retaliation for the following reasons: (1) an individual’s protected classification; (2) the 
perception that an individual has a protected classification; or (3) the individual 
associates with a person who has or is perceived to have a protected classification. 

This Policy expressly prohibits elected officials from harassing, discriminating against, 
or retaliating against applicants, officers, officials, employees, contractors, or 
members of the public for any of the reasons enumerated above. because of: 1) an 
individual's protected classification; 2) the perception that an individual has a 
protected classification; or 3) the individual associates with a person who has or is 
perceived to have a protected classification. 

B-180-1020-34. Harassment. This Policy prohibits harassment of a covered 
individual because of the individual’s actual or perceived protected classification. 
Harassment may include, but is not limited to, the following types of behavior that is 
taken because of a person's protected classification. Note that harassment is not 
limited to conduct that the District's employees take. Under certain circumstances, 
harassment can also include conduct taken by those who are not employees, such as 
elected officials, persons providing services under contracts, or even members of the 
public.  Harassment may include, but is not limited to, the following types of behavior: 

Speech, such as epithets, derogatory, offensive or inappropriate comments, or 
slurs, or stereotypical comments, or verbal  and propositionsing made  on the 
basis of a protected classification. This might includes, but is not limited to, 
inappropriate comments, stories, and jokes about on appearance, including 
dress,  or physical features,  or dress consistent with gender identification, or 
and race-oriented stories and jokes. 

Physical Aacts, such as assault, impeding or blocking movement, offensive 
touching, or any physical interference with normal work or movement. This 
includes, but is not limited to, pinching, grabbing, patting, propositioning, leering, or 
making explicit or implied job threats or promises in return for submission to 
physical acts. 

Visual acts, such as derogatory, offensive, or inappropriate, posters, cartoons, 
emails, pictures, or drawings related to a protected classification. 

Unwanted sexual advances, requests for sexual favors and other acts of a sexual 
nature, where submission is made a term or condition of employment, where 
submission to or rejection of the conduct is used as the basis for employment 
decisions, or where the conduct is intended to or actually does unreasonably interfere 
with an individual's work performance or create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive 
working environment. 

B-180-20-5 Discrimination. This Policy prohibits treating a covered individual 
differently and adversely because of the individual’s actual or perceived protected 
classification; because the individual associates with a person who is or is perceived 
to be a member of a protected classification; or because the individual participates in 
a protected activity as defined in this Policy. 

57



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

10354357.1 LA105-001  

B-180-20-6 Retaliation. Retaliation occurs when an employer takes adverse action 
against a covered individual because of the individual’s protected activity as defined 
in this Policy. 

“Adverse action” may include, but is not limited to, the following actions: (1) 
disciplinary action; (2) counseling; (3) taking sides because an individual has reported 
harassment or discrimination; (4) spreading rumors about a complainant or about 
someone who supports or assists the complainant or who participates in the 
investigation; (5) shunning or avoiding an individual who reports harassment or 
discrimination; or (6) making real or implied threats of intimidation to prevent or deter 
an individual from reporting harassment or discrimination. 

B-180-20 30 Guidelines for Identifying Harassment.  Harassment includes conduct that 
another individual who is a member of the protected classification would find unwelcome or 
unwanted. Harassment may include the following: 

To help clarify what constitutes harassment in violation of this Policy, use the following 
guidelines: 

B-180-2030-1 Harassment includes any conduction conduct which would be 
"unwelcome or unwanted" to an individual of the recipient's same protected 
classification and which is taken because of the recipient's protected classification. 

B-180-30-2 Conduct that is not intended to harass. Conduct may violate this Policy 
if the conduct is directed at, or implicates a protected classification and the recipient 
finds the conduct to be offensive or inappropriate, even if its well-intentioned 
conduct (e.g., gifts, over-attention, endearing nicknames, hugs).  

B-180-2030-32 It is noConduct to which the recipient appears to have consented 
can still constitute harassment. The District does not recognize as a defense that 
the recipient appeareds to have voluntarily "consented" to the conduct at issue by 
failing to protest about the conduct. A recipient may not protest offensive or 
inappropriate conduct for many legitimate reasons, including the need to avoid 
being perceived as insubordinate or to avoid being ostracized or subjected to 
retaliation. 

B-180-2030-43 Conduct about which no employee has previously complained can 
still constitute harassment. Simply because no one has complained about a joke, 
gesture, picture, physical contact, or comment or substantially similar conduct does 
not mean that the conduct is welcome, inoffensive, or appropriate. Harassment can 
evolve over time. The fact that no one is complaining nowpreviously complained does 
not preclude anyone from complaining if the conduct is repeated in the future. 

B-180-2030-54 Conduct witnessed by a third party or about which a third party 
learns, even if they did not witness the conduct., can be harassment. Even vVisual, 
verbal, or physical conduct between two elected officials who appear to welcome 
the conduct people who do not find such conduct offensive or inappropriate can 
constitute harassment of a third applicant, officer, official, employee, intern, 
volunteer, or contractorparty witnesses suchho observes the conduct or learns 
about the conduct later and finds the conduct to be offensive or inappropriate. 

58



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

10354357.1 LA105-001  

Conduct can constitute harassment even if it is not explicitly or specifically directed 
at an particular individual. 

B-180-2030-65 Conduct can constitute harassment in violation of this Policy even if 
the individual engaging in the conduct has no intention to harass. Even well-
intentioned conduct can violate this Policy if the conduct is directed at, or 
implicatesd a protected classification, and if an the individual or an individual of the 
recipient's same protected classification would find it inappropriate or offensive 
(e.g., gifts, over attention, endearing nicknames, hugs). 

B-180-30 40 Complaint ProcessProcedure. A n employee, job applicant, volunteer, 
intern, elected official, or contractor covered individual who believes he/she is they have 
been subjected to the victim of harassment, discrimination or retaliation may file a formal or 
informal make a complaint without fear of reprisal or embarrassmentto any supervisor, 
manager, District Counsel, or the General Manager without regard to any chain of 
command. 

B-180-40-1 An informal complaint is made verbally to District Counsel or the 
General Manager, or with any supervisory employee. 

B-180-40-2 A formal complaint is made in writing. It is preferred that a written 
complaint be submitted to the District Counsel or the General Manager, but it may 
also be submitted to any supervisory employee. 

Any supervisory or management employee who receives a harassment, discrimination, or 
retaliation complaint should immediately notify the General Manager. Upon receiving 
notification of a complaint regarding discrimination, harassment or retaliation, the General 
Manager or their designee will complete and/or delegate the following steps: 

B-180-30-1 An informal complaint is made verbally to District Counsel or the 
General Manager, or with any supervisory employee. 

B-180-30-2 A formal complaint is made in writing. It is preferred that a written 
complaint be submitted to the District Counsel or the General Manager, but it may 
also be submitted to any supervisory employee 

B-180-30-3 Any supervisor who receives a harassment complaint should notify the 
General Manager immediately. If the harassment complaint is made by or against 
the General Manager, the supervisor should notify District Counsel. 

B-180-3040-4 3 Within 24 hours of the submitting the complaint to the General 
Manager, the General Manager shall inform, in a means designed to retain 
confidentiality, the District Counsel.  

B-180-3040-5 4 Upon receiving notification of a harassment complaint, the 
General Manager or District Counsel shall authorize Authorize and 
supervise the investigation of the complaint and/or investigate the 
complaint. The investigation will usually include interviews with the 
following individuals: 1) the complainant; 2) the accused (i.e., the subject of 
the investigation) harasser; 3) witnesses to the conduct at issue in the 
complaint; and 34) other persons who have relevant knowledge concerning 

59



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

10354357.1 LA105-001  

the allegations in the complaint. Those informed of the investigation shall 
conduct themselves in a manner that will not compromise the integrity of 
the investigation. , including, but not limited to, refraining from actions that 
may intimidate potential witnesses.  

 

B-180-30-6 The person initiating the complaintcomplainant and the person 
accused of the alleged harassmentaccused has have the right to be 
accompanied by an advocate(s) when discussing alleged incidents. Said 
persons shall be advised of this right prior to the commencement of such 
discussions. 

 

B-180-40-5 Review the factual information gathered during the investigation 
to determine whether the alleged conduct violated the Policy giving 
consideration to all factual information, the totality of the circumstances, 
including the nature of the conduct, and the context in which the alleged 
incidents occurred. 

B-180-40-6 Prepare a summary report of the determination as to whether the 
conduct violated this Policy and, if necessary, provide such report to the 
appointing authority (i.e., District Counsel or General Manager). If discipline 
or sanctions are imposed, the level of discipline or sanctions will not be 
communicated to the complainant. 

B-180-40-7 If conduct in violation of this Policy occurred, take or recommend to the 
appointing authority prompt and effective remedial action. The remedial action will be 
commensurate with the severity of the offense. 

B-180-40-8 Take reasonable steps to protect the complainant from further 
harassment, discrimination or retaliation. 

 

If the General Manager or District Counsel is the accused, or is a witness to the events at 
issue, an individual with higher authority will complete and/or delegate the steps enumerated 
above. 

The District takes a proactive approach to potential violations of this Policy and will conduct 
an investigation if its supervisory or management employees become aware that 
harassment, discrimination or retaliation occurred or may be occurring, regardless of whether 
the recipient or third party reports a potential violation. 

B-180-40 50 Disciplinary Procedures and Sanctions. Upon conclusion of the investigation 
of an alleged harassment, discrimination or retaliation, appropriate action shall be taken 
against the harasser appropriate party where a violation of this Policy is found, including 
legal actions where appropriate. 

60



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

10354357.1 LA105-001  

B-180-40-1 Appropriate action shall be taken to remedy the victim's loss, if any, 
resulting from the harassment, discrimination or retaliation. 

B-180-40-2 Action taken to remedy a harassment, discrimination or retaliation 
situation shall be done in a manner so as to prevent further violations. 

B-180-40-3 Elected officials and employees complaining of harassment shall be 
protected thereafter from any form of reprisal and/or retaliation. Any adverse 
conduct taken because an applicant, employee, elected official or contractor has 
reported harassment, or has participated in the complaint and investigation 
process described herein, is prohibited. "Adverse conduct" includes but is not 
limited to: taking sides because an individual has reported harassment, 
spreading rumors about a complaint, shunning and avoiding an individual who 
reports harassment, or real or implied threats of intimidation to prevent an 
individual from reporting harassment. The following individuals are protected 
from retaliation:This Policy protects those who make good faith reports of 
harassment, and those who associate with an individual who is involved in 
reporting harassment or who participates in the complaint or investigation 
process, from retaliation. 

B-180-60 Confidentiality. The District will make every effort to assure the confidentiality 
of complaints made under this Policy to the greatest extent allowed by law. However, 
complete confidentiality may not be possible because of the District’s need to investigate 
the complaint and provide the subject of the complaint their due process rights, which 
include providing the subject of the investigation a copy of the complaint after the initial 
investigatory interview, if requested. 

The District expressly prohibits an employee who is interviewed during the course of an 
investigation from attempting to influence other employees, including employees who 
may have witnessed the underlying conduct at issue, while the investigation is open and 
ongoing. 

An employee may discuss their interview with a designated representative from the 
employee’s employee organization and/or the employee’s legal representative. The 
District will not disclose a completed investigation report except as it deems necessary to 
support a disciplinary action, to take remedial action, to defend itself in adversarial 
proceedings, or to comply with the law or court order. 

B-180-70 Responsibilities.  

B-180-70-10 Each non-supervisor or non-manager is responsible for the following: 

1. Treating all individuals in the workplace or on District worksites with respect 
and consideration. 

2. Modeling behavior that conforms to this Policy. 

3. Participating in periodic trainings on personnel matters. 

61



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

10354357.1 LA105-001  

4. Cooperating with the District’s investigations pursuant to this Policy by 
responding fully and truthfully and in a timely manner to all questions posed 
during the investigation. 

5. Taking no actions to influence the complainant or any potential witness while 
the District’s investigation is ongoing. 

6. Reporting any act they believe in good faith constitutes harassment, 
discrimination or retaliation as defined in this Policy, to their immediate 
supervisor or manager, District Counsel, or the General Manager. 

B-180-70-20 In addition to the responsibilities listed above, each manager and 
supervisor is responsible for the following: 

1. Informing employees under their supervision of this Policy. 

2. Taking all steps necessary to prevent harassment, discrimination and 
retaliation from occurring, including, but not limited to, monitoring the work 
environment and taking immediate and appropriate action to stop violations (e.g., 
removing inappropriate pictures or correcting inappropriate language). 

3. Receiving and responding to complaints in a uniformly fair and serious 
manner.  

4. Documenting the steps taken to resolve such complaints. 

5. Following up with those who have complained to ensure that the offensive 
conduct about which they complained has stopped and that there have been no 
reprisals or retaliation or threats of reprisals or retaliation. 

6. Informing those who complain about harassment and/or discrimination of their 
option to contact the EEOC or DFEHCRD and file a complaint about such 
activity. 

7. Assisting and/or advising employees regarding this Policy. 

8. Assisting in the investigation of complaints involving subordinate employee(s). 

9. Where a complaint is substantiated, assisting in the development of a 
recommendation concerning an appropriate corrective or disciplinary action in 
accordance with these policies. 

10. Implementing appropriate corrective or disciplinary actions. 

11. Reporting potential violations of this Policy to the District Counsel or the 
General Manager, regardless of whether an employee complained about such 
conduct. 

12. Participating in periodic training and scheduling employees for training. 

62



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

10354357.1 LA105-001  

B- 180-5080- RightOption to File Report withto Outside Administrative Agencies. An 
individual possesseshas the option right to report workplace harassment, discrimination or 
retaliation to the U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) and/or the 
California Department of Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH)Civil Rights Department 
(CRD). These administrative agencies provideoffer legal remedies and a complaint process 
as well as certainand legal remedies where the applicable agency determined that a violation 
of the law occurred. The nearest EEOC and DFEHCRD offices are listed in the government 
section of the telephone book, or employees can check the posters that are located on 
employer District bulletin boards for EEOC and DFEHCRD office locations and telephone 
numbers. 

63



Original

64



65



66



67



Collections/Maintenance/Safety Department Report – Oct.- Dec. 2022 2/16/2023 

Collections/Maintenance/Safety Department Report Page 1 of 3 

SSO SPILL SUMMARY 

• There were no SSO’s in the 4th quarter of 2022.

KEY MAINTENANCE PROJECTS 

• Completed annual PM on St. Vincent Drainage PS.

• Rebuilt 8” PVC header on RW train #2 due to leaking PVC fitting.

• Removed Descanso VFD and sent out for repair.

• Underground leak at pond 1 repaired.

• Replaced LCD display and communication board on E001 Rotork, configured and
programmed.

• Bypassed a leaking redundant biogas regulator for the large boiler.

• Changed gearbox oils in BioWheel drives.

• Replaced failed VFD for thickener flock tank mixer.

• Made stainless piping changes to seal water supply for primary pumps and internal

recycle pumps to allow the use of reclaimed water or potable water.

• Routine Preventative Maintenance Work Orders – Treatment Plant/Pump

Stations/Reclamation

• (400) Fleet Maintenance Inspections

SAFETY ISSUES AND TRAINING 

• Qualified Electrical Worker Training

• Lockout/Tagout – make up training.

• Hazardous Waste Management/Spill Prevention Counter Measures Training

• Safety Committee Meeting

• Hazardous Materials Business Plan – Site Review

OTHER 

• Electrical/Instrumentation Internal Recruitment – Interview

• Collection System – Pump Station Maintenance (Routine)

• Collection System – “Hotspot” maintenance (Quarterly)

REQUESTS FOR PROPOSALS 

• None

Agenda Item 3.3

68



  Collections/Maintenance/Safety Department Report – Oct.- Dec. 2022 2/16/2023 

   
 

 

Collections/Maintenance/Safety Department Report Page 2 of 3 

PERFORMANCE METRICS 

Collection System Cleaning and CCTV Inspection 

• Flushed/Rodded = 126,756 feet; Percent of District = 22.9%. 

• CCTV Inspected = 0 feet; Percent of District = 0.00% 

• Manhole inspections performed = 487 

• USA Ticket Work Orders = 561 

Lateral Construction and Repair Inspections 

• Applications received = 58 

• Full Replacement Inspections Performed = 8 Full Replacements 

• Cleanout Installation Inspections Performed = 6 Cleanout Installations 

• Spot Repairs/Upper/Lower Replacements Performed = 9 partial replacements or spot 

repairs 

 

 

 
 

CNG Fueling Stations 

• CNG Fueling Station  

o Plant Slow Fill = 0% Up Time 

o Smith Ranch Fast Fill = 100% Up Time. 

• Smith Ranch Fuel Station  

o 17 Fill-ups  

o Total Diesel Gallon Equivalent (DGE) = 493 DGE 

o Average MPG = 2.9 MPG 

 

Sewer Lateral Ordinance Inspections - Number of Applications Processed 

Lateral Construction and Repair Inspections

Full Lateral Replacement

Cleanout Installation Inspection

Partial Replacement - Spot Repair/Upper/Lower Lateral

69



  Collections/Maintenance/Safety Department Report – Oct.- Dec. 2022 2/16/2023 

   
 

 

Collections/Maintenance/Safety Department Report Page 3 of 3 

 

• Home Sale Applicants = 25 received 

• Building Permit ($30,000 valuation) Applicants = 3 received 

 

 

 
 

• Home Sale Letter of Findings Issued = 31; 9 - recommend replacement, 13 -have defects 

that require monitoring, 9 - no work or monitoring required, 0 – Illegal connection 

 

 

Applications - Home Sale vs Building Permit (Triggers)

Home Sales Building Permit ($30,000 Valuation)

Letter of Findings Issued

No Work Required Has Defects That Require Monitoring

Recommend Replacement Illegal Connections

70



Plant Operations Department Report – October - December 2022 2/16/2023  

Plant Operations Department Report Page 1 of 2 

CRITICAL PROCESS 

• Treatment plant effluent was discharged to the reclamation storage ponds in October
and November. Low storage pond levels and weather forecasts reporting low expected
precipitation in November provided a unique opportunity to delay effluent discharge to
Miller Creek until December 1st, one month later than an average year.

• Staff assisted in the coordination of, and modified operations to accommodate 8 service

outage requests initiated by the STPURWE General Contractor (GC).

• Three Bio-Wheel aeration trains were in operation in this report period. Multiple drive

chain link failures were observed by staff and replaced by the GC in this report period.

• One blending event occurred on December 31st after heavy rainfall. Blending is a

permitted treatment strategy that routes primary effluent, exceeding secondary

treatment capacity, directly to disinfection and dechlorination before discharge.

NON-CRITICAL PROCESS 

• In the first week of October, Sahar Golshani, Chris Campbell, and Don Moore attended

the 2022 WEFTEC annual conference.

• October 25th staff participated in the “A Day Without SCADA” exercise and training

provided by contract cybersecurity consulting firm.

• November training: Plant Manager attended “The Effective Managers Communication

Skills Toolbox”, the Laboratory Supervisor attended “Maximizing Performance Through

Documentation, Evaluation, and Corrective Action” and the Plant Operations Supervisor

attended “Work Smarter, Not Harder: Time Management for Personal & Professional

Productivity” in December.

PERFORMANCE METRICS 

Sewage Treated 

• 2.28 million gallons per day average daily influent flow for October through December.
Recycled Water Production 

• 19.35 million gallons of recycled water was pumped to North Marin Water District

• 72.14 million gallons of recycled water was pumped to Marin Municipal Water District

LGVSD Recycled Water flows 2018 - 2022 

Units are in millions of gallons 

Year Plant Influent MMWD NMWD Pasture Irrigation RW Sum 

2018 882.0 221.0 18.2 93.0 332 

2019 1157.0 NA 49.0 80.6 129 

2020 799.0 NA 33.1 89.6 122.7 

2021 855.0 162.2 47.3 72.4 281.9 

2022 758.0 232.0 52.3 79.7 364 

No RW produced for MMWD during RWF expansion in 2019 & 2020 

Agenda Item 3.4

71



   Plant Operations Department Report – October - December 2022 2/16/2023   
 

 

Plant Operations Department Report  Page 2 of 2 

Reclamation 

• Pond Levels Beginning of October – Pond #1 = 5.0’ - Pond #2 = 0.5’ ~ 30% of Capacity 

Pond Levels at End of December – Pond #1 = 6.2’ - Pond #2 = 6.1’ ~ 68% of Capacity 

Solar Power Generation 

• 9,886 kWh offsetting approximately $2,471 in PG&E/MCE electrical consumption costs 

using an average rate of $0.25/kWh. Inverters A & B were shut down 12/2021 for safety. 

Biosolids 

• 1.5 million gallons of digested sludge was transferred from the storage lagoons to the 

dedicated land disposal site during the summer months.  

Biogas Utilization 

• Total Digester Gas Produced – 3,115,347 scf – Microturbines at 67.4% uptime producing 

a total of 60,166 kWh, offsetting approximately $15,041 in PG&E/MCE electrical 

consumption costs using an average rate of $0.25/kWh. 

 

NPDES PERMIT COMPLIANCE 

No self-monitoring violations were reported to the water board in this period. All monthly 

reports were submitted to their respective regulatory agencies in accordance with permit 

requirements. On average, laboratory staff performed 138 process control and 25 regulatory 

compliance analyses per week during this report period. 

Flare
5%

Microturbines
53%

DG Boiler
42%

RNG Boiler
0%

RNG Vehicle
0%

72



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\02162023\ASR 2nd QTR Treasurer's Report December 2022.docx Page 1 of 3 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager  
(415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 

Meeting Date: February 16, 2023 

Re: Quarterly Treasurer’s & Financial Reports as of December 31, 2022 

Item Type:   Consent   Action  Information  X Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 

 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Information only 
 
BACKGROUND 
Board Policy F-20-10, Financial Reporting, and Board Policy F-70-120, Investment Reporting, 
require that a quarterly report be submitted to the Board. It is prudent and beneficial to present 
these reports to the Board at the same time. 
 
TREASURER’S INVESTMENT REPORT 
Pursuant to the State of California Government Code Section 56300, the District’s investment 
policy adopted on July, 21, 2022, and industry best practices, staff prepares a quarterly report on 
the District’s cash position, investments, and liquidity. 
 

As specified in California Government Code Section 53646(e), if all funds are placed in Local 
Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), FDIC-insured accounts and/or in a county investment pool, the 
reporting elements may be replaced by copies of the latest statements from such institutions. 
 

The attached Treasurer’s Report presents the District’s bank and investment account balances as 
of December 31, 2022. Total Investments of $26,790,397 are held in the Local Agency Investment 
Fund (LAIF) and in two restricted debt service accounts, which reflect a decrease of $5,150,048 
during the previous twelve-month period. 
 

Included with the Treasurer’s Report is the LAIF remittance advice from the State Controller’s 
Office which includes report on earnings ratio, interest rate, and current market value along with 
the Pooled Money Investment Account/LAIF Performance Report. The LAIF report for the quarter 
ending December 31, 2022 shows the interest rate of 2.07%, up from 1.35% in September, with 
quarterly interest earned of $111,251. 
 

The District is required to maintain cash in debt reserve funds, equal to one year’s debt service for 
the State Revolving Fund and for the loans from Bank of Marin. Quarterly Account Summary for 
the Bank of Marin Certificates of Deposit are included with this Treasurer’s Report. 
 

The District’s investments comply with its investment policy and the District has sufficient funds 
available to meet its obligations for the next six months. 

Item Number____3.5__________ 

GM Review   ______CP________ 

73

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\02162023\ASR 2nd QTR Treasurer's Report December 2022.docx Page 2 of 3 

 

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL REPORT 
District staff is required to provide a quarterly summary report that compares actual revenues and 
expenditures to budgeted amounts, including relevant information on debt proceeds and debt 
service payments. 
 
Cash Balance  
The District has $34,196,564 of cash and investments on hand as of December 31, 2022; a 
decrease of $6.1M from December 31, 2021 primarily due to construction expenditures related to 
the Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade and Recycled Water Expansion (STPURWE) Project. 
 
Expenditures for the STPURWE project over the past year were primarily paid from the: 
 

1. California Infrastructure and Economic Development Bank (IBank) Infrastructure State 
Revolving Fund (ISFR). The remaining balance of $567,760 will be deposited into the 
operating account once the Notice of Completion for the project is filed. 

2. Capital Project Reserve Fund that holds Marin Water annual proportional debt-service and 
quarterly buy-in payments for STPURWE project. 

3. Operating Account for miscellaneous project related charges. 

 
The operating account balance fluctuates based on operating needs and it is not uncommon for 
the balance to change over the prior quarter or year. This quarter $7M in Property Tax and Sewer 
Service Charge revenue was transferred from the operating account to LAIF. 
 
Of the cash on hand, the District has designated portions of it for the following uses:  
 

• Reserves of $7,766,782 pursuant to District policies. 

• Connection fees of $688,126 which are available only to fund capacity related projects. 

• Debt service restricted reserve funds of $906,839 as required by loan covenants. 

• Special assessment funds for operation and maintenance of the pump stations at Captains 
Cove and Marin Lagoon of $1,499 and $15,990, respectively.  

• Accumulation of cash for the Private Sewer Lateral Assistance program of $390,024. 

 

There is $24.4M remaining after the designations noted above. The District has encumbered 
$10.8M for capital projects and services as of December 31, 2022. This leaves $13.6M in 
unrestricted funds as of December 31. The District’s average annual operating expenses and debt 
service payments are expected to lower the unrestricted fund balance by approximate $1.2M per 
month through April 2023. 
 
Recent Board-approved encumbrances for flow monitoring, construction management and 
inspection, along with other incidental encumbrances total an additional $2.1M that is not included 
in the encumbered amount above. 
 
 

74



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\02162023\ASR 2nd QTR Treasurer's Report December 2022.docx Page 3 of 3 

 
 

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual Financial Statement 
Attached are the quarterly financial statements as of December 31, 2022, with highlights 
explaining significant variances and analysis below.  Additional details are provided with the Mid-
Year Budget Report. 
 
Revenue 
 

• Sewer Service Charge (SSC) Reimbursement (#9771) reflects reimbursement to three 
property owners overcharged  for SSC service in prior years. 

 

• Miscellaneous Income (#9773) is mostly the settlement payment on the remaining warranty 
value for solar panels and equipment.  

 

• Interest on IBank ISRF (#9208) is interest on the installment loan balance held by IBank.  It 
was not included in budget as it was anticipated that final disbursement would have 
occurred last fiscal year, which would have resulted in zero interest being received.   

 
Expenditures 
  

• Contract Personnel (#1005) – Operational Technical Services provided a Laboratory 
Analyst through December 2022 while recruitment to fill the vacant position was 
undertaken. 

  

• Workers Compensation (#1701) – pooled deposit of $106,073 based on forecasted salary 
was paid in July. A final premium audit for 2021-22 period was completed in December 
which resulted in an additional expense of $30,541. Workers Compensation expenses are 
anticipated to increase along with increased employee count and salaries.   
 

• Passthru (#2355) is used to track engineering coordinated reimbursable expenses.  
Expenses are offset by recovering reimbursements under the Passthru revenue account).   

 
Total Operating & Maintenance expenses for the first half of the fiscal year is $7,693,148 which 
comprises 48.12% of the annual budget.   
 
Debt Proceeds and Service: 
The State Revolving Fund loan principal and interest is due in April.  The 2017 Revenue Bond 
principal payment is due in February.  All debt service payments are being paid according to 
schedule.  

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
N/A 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
See above. 

75



I. Account Summary: Bank and Investment Accounts
2022 2021

Summary of Bank and Investment Accounts

OPERATIONS:

Bank of Marin
Operating Accounts 5,513,017            11,908,529          (6,395,513)        
Liquid Savings 225,923               225,596               326                    
Private Sewer Lateral Rehab 390,024               380,241               9,783                 
Surcharge-Marin Lagoon 15,990                 84,656                 (68,667)             
Surcharge-Captains Cove 1,499                   17,279                 (15,780)             
Connection Fee 688,126               341,031               347,095             
Capital Project Reserve Fund Money Market 3983 3,130                   3,643,430            (3,640,301)        

Petty cash 576                      932                      (356)                  
Investment Accounts

Debt Service Reserve-Recycled Water 604,144               601,167               2,977                 
Debt Service Reserve-SRF Loan 302,695               301,203               1,492                 

Local Agency Investment Fund 25,883,558          20,737,979          5,145,579          

Cash and Investments 33,628,681$        38,242,045$        (4,613,364)$      

IBANK ISRF AGREEMENT: 567,760               2,086,866            (1,519,107)        

RESTRICTED 2017 BOND 

US Bank Bond & Cost of Issuance Funds 123$                    116$                    7$                      
TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS 34,196,564$        40,329,028$        (6,132,464)$      

II. Account Activity for Bank of Marin Accounts

Bank of Marin operating account activity is for paying regular operating expenses of the District.  Funds are 
transferred from the Liquid Savings to the Operating account as needed.

Statement of Compliance:
The investments accounts are invested in compliance with the District's investment policy, adopted at the 
July 21, 2022  Board meeting and California Government Code Section 53600. In addition, the District does 
have the financial ability to meet  its cash flow requirements for the next six months.

Prepared by: Approved by: 
Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager Curtis Paxton, General Manager

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District
Treasurer's Report - Operating and Investment Accounts

December 31, 2022

December Change from 
Previous YearAccounts Summary

Q:\ACCOUNTING\Quarterly Financials\2022-23\2nd QTR Treasurers Report Dec 2022 1/31/2023 2:15 PM76



1/17/23, 10:45 AM Untitled Page

https://laif.sco.ca.gov/Result.aspx 1/1

MALIA M. COHEN

California State Controller

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND
REMITTANCE ADVICE

Agency Name LAS GALINAS VLY SANITARY DIST 

Account Number XX-XX-XXX

As of 01/13/2023, your Local Agency Investment Fund account has been directly credited
with the interest earned on your deposits for the quarter ending 12/31/2022.

Earnings Ratio .00005680946709337

Interest Rate 2.07%

Dollar Day Total $ 1,958,322,651.36

Quarter End Principal Balance $ 25,883,558.38

Quarterly Interest Earned $ 111,251.27

77



December 2.173
November 2.007

October 1.772

PMIA Quarter to Date(1): 1.98
287PMIA Average Life(1):

2.07LAIF Apportionment Rate(2):
0.00005680946709337
0.981389258

 LAIF Earnings Ratio(2):
 LAIF Fair Value Factor(1):

PMIA Daily(1): 2.29

Treasuries
66.67%

Agencies
20.08%

Certificates of 
Deposit/Bank Notes

6.26%

Time 
Deposits

2.58%

Commercial
Paper
3.95%

Corporate 
Bonds
0.27%

Loans
0.19%

Notes: The apportionment rate includes interest earned on the CalPERS Supplemental Pension Payment 
pursuant to Government Code 20825 (c)(1) and interest earned on the Wildfire Fund loan pursuant to Public 
Utility Code 3288 (a). 

Source:
(1) State of California, Office of the Treasurer
(2) State of Calfiornia, Office of the Controller

PMIA Average Monthly 
Effective Yields(1)

PMIA/LAIF Performance Report
as of 01/18/23

Daily rates are now available here.  View PMIA Daily Rates

Quarterly Performance
Quarter Ended 12/31/22

Chart does not include $3,466,000.00 in mortgages, which equates to 0.002%. Percentages may not total 100% due to rounding.

Pooled Money Investment Account
Monthly Portfolio Composition (1)

12/31/22
$199.6 billion

78

https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/historical/daily.pdf


Account Number: xxxx-xxx679 
Statement Period: 09/30/22 - 12/31/22 
Page: 1 of 1

PO Box 2039
Novato, CA 94948-2039

Customer Service Information
Branch: 415-472-2265
Touch Tone Banking: 800-654-5111

Lost or Stolen Card:
24 hours 7 days per week 866-626-6004

Written Inquiries:
5800 NORTHGATE MALL, SUITE #51
SAN RAFAEL CA 94903

Visit us Online: www.bankofmarin.com

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
"BANK OF MARIN DEBT RESERVE"
101 LUCAS VALLEY RD SUITE 300
SAN RAFAEL CA 94903-1795

Account Summary for PUBLIC FUNDS JMBO CDxxxx-xxx679

Total Current Balance $604,144.05
Total Interest Year To Date $2,977.08

Transaction Detail

Date Description Deposits Withdrawals Balance
09/30 Beginning Balance $603,392.27
10/31 Interest 751.78 604,144.05
12/31 Ending Balance $604,144.05

Deposit Number 0000-000001
Principal $571,431.58
Current Balance $604,144.05
Total Interest Year To Date $2,977.08
Current Rate 0.494%

Original Deposit Amount $569,178.89
Original Deposit Date 08/01/12
Last Maturity Date 08/01/20
Current Term 60 Months, renewable
Next Maturity Date 08/01/25

00008389 00028720 0001 0001 BOMB1110123122060243 01

00008389 BOMB1110123122060243 01     0000

101010101010101010101010
101011011100100000100011
110010110101110100111100
101000110101010110101101
101111000011101000100000
101111010001110011001111
101100011001100000000100
101100000001000101101111
100011100100001011101110
110000001100101100111001
110010100000011010111010
100100011010101001101101
111010001100111000111110
100001010001101000101101
100101010100001000100000
100100001111101001001111
110001010101110010111110
110010000101100000010101
100010110001011100011000
101011111110111100000011
111101011101100110101100
100100011010110101000101
101001110110100010000010
111111111111111111111111

79



Account Number: xxxx-xxx073 
Statement Period: 09/30/22 - 12/31/22 
Page: 1 of 1

PO Box 2039
Novato, CA 94948-2039

Customer Service Information
Branch: 415-472-2265
Touch Tone Banking: 800-654-5111

Lost or Stolen Card:
24 hours 7 days per week 866-626-6004

Written Inquiries:
5800 NORTHGATE MALL, SUITE #51
SAN RAFAEL CA 94903

Visit us Online: www.bankofmarin.com

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
101 LUCAS VALLEY RD SUITE 300
SAN RAFAEL CA 94903-1795

Account Summary for PUBLIC FUNDS JMBO CDxxxx-xxx073

Total Current Balance $302,694.72
Total Interest Year To Date $1,491.61

Transaction Detail

Date Description Deposits Withdrawals Balance
09/30 Beginning Balance $302,318.06
10/29 Interest 376.66 302,694.72
12/31 Ending Balance $302,694.72

Deposit Number 0000-000001
Principal $286,304.76
Current Balance $302,694.72
Total Interest Year To Date $1,491.61
Current Rate 0.494%

Original Deposit Amount $286,304.76
Original Deposit Date 07/30/13
Last Maturity Date 07/30/20
Current Term 60 Months, renewable
Next Maturity Date 07/30/25

00008393 00028728 0001 0001 BOMB1110123122060243 01

00008393 BOMB1110123122060243 01     0000

101010101010101010101010
101011011100100000100011
110010110101110100111100
101000110101010110101101
101111000011101000100000
101111010001110011001111
101100011011100000000100
101100000001000101111111
100011100100001011110110
110000001100101100100101
110010100000011010011110
100100010010100001110011
111010010011111101111100
100001000010010100011101
100101011010011010000000
100100011101101101001111
110001111000000010101010
110010111001010111001001
100011010101111010011000
101000100110101010101001
110100101110010001000000
101100001000110100010101
101011110101100010001010
111111111111111111111111

80



 1:40 PM
 02/01/23
 Accrual Basis

 Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District

 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 July through December 2022

Jul - Dec 22 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Revenue/Expense

Income

9011 ꞏ Sewer Service Charge

9007 ꞏ Special Assessment - Current 8,877,665.65 15,930,508.00 -7,052,842.35 55.73%

9770 ꞏ Sewer Service Charge Direct Bil 961,060.73 980,000.00 -18,939.27 98.07%

9771 ꞏ Sewer Service Chrg Reimbrsmt PY -45,287.20

Total 9011 ꞏ Sewer Service Charge 9,793,439.18 16,910,508.00 -7,117,068.82 57.91%

9880 ꞏ Recycled Water 80,771.26 172,000.00 -91,228.74 46.96%

9022 ꞏ Permits and Inspection Fees 18,000.00 71,745.00 -53,745.00 25.09%

9024 ꞏ Application Fees 2,250.00 3,775.00 -1,525.00 59.6%

9101 ꞏ Private Sewer Lateral Program

9102 ꞏ PSL Levy Principal 49,722.52 79,300.00 -29,577.48 62.7%

9105 ꞏ PSL Direct Pay Off 1,627.12

Total 9101 ꞏ Private Sewer Lateral Program 51,349.64 79,300.00 -27,950.36 64.75%

9773 ꞏ Miscellaneous Income 97,091.19 1,250.00 95,841.19 7,767.3%

9000 ꞏ Property Tax Revenue

9001 ꞏ Property Tax - Current Secured 625,070.49 1,239,692.00 -614,621.51 50.42%

9002 ꞏ Property Tax - Current Unsecure 17,306.43 20,000.00 -2,693.57 86.53%

9004 ꞏ Prior Secured Redemption 105.61 400.00 -294.39 26.4%

9006 ꞏ Prior Unsecured 1,000.68 2,000.00 -999.32 50.03%

Total 9000 ꞏ Property Tax Revenue 643,483.21 1,262,092.00 -618,608.79 50.99%

9040 ꞏ Supp. Assmnts - Property Tax

9041 ꞏ Current Supplemental Assmts 4,959.24 27,695.00 -22,735.76 17.91%

Total 9040 ꞏ Supp. Assmnts - Property Tax 4,959.24 27,695.00 -22,735.76 17.91%

9046 ꞏ ERAF 306,032.19 584,867.00 -278,834.81 52.33%

9280 ꞏ HOPTR 642.03 4,453.00 -3,810.97 14.42%

9021 ꞏ Franchise Revenue 81,217.36 169,776.00 -88,558.64 47.84%

9010 ꞏ Federal and State Grants 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%

9015 ꞏ Donations (received) 3,500.00

9023 ꞏ Connection Fees CapX 288,689.00 1,740,572.00 -1,451,883.00 16.59%

9881 ꞏ MMWD Buy-in & Bond Share CapX 78,526.82 619,633.00 -541,106.18 12.67%

9100 ꞏ Reimbursements

9104 ꞏ Passthru (Expense 2355) 28,151.00 25,000.00 3,151.00 112.6%

Total 9100 ꞏ Reimbursements 28,151.00 25,000.00 3,151.00 112.6%

9200 ꞏ Interest Income

9208 ꞏ Interest on IBank ISRF 1,578.04

9210 ꞏ Bank Interest 1,929.72 2,240.00 -310.28 86.15%

9206 ꞏ Interest Connection Fees CapX 459.17 964.00 -504.83 47.63%

9204 ꞏ Interest on Bond Funds 0.00 7.00 -7.00 0.0%

9209 ꞏ Interest - LAIF 74,209.20 63,600.00 10,609.20 116.68%

9201 ꞏ Interest on Reserves 2,339.56 4,500.00 -2,160.44 51.99%

9211 ꞏ Interest PSL Program

9212 ꞏ PSL Investment Interest 187.60 400.00 -212.40 46.9%

Total 9211 ꞏ Interest PSL Program 187.60 400.00 -212.40 46.9%

 Page 1 of 581



 1:40 PM
 02/01/23
 Accrual Basis

 Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District

 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 July through December 2022

Jul - Dec 22 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Total 9200 ꞏ Interest Income 80,703.29 71,711.00 8,992.29 112.54%

Total Revenue 11,558,805.41 21,749,377.00 -10,190,571.59 53.15%

Expense

1001 ꞏ Employee Costs

1001.1 ꞏ Salaries

1003 ꞏ Regular Staff Salaries 1,677,861.33 4,071,400.00 -2,393,538.67 41.21%

1008 ꞏ Overtime 42,069.37 132,600.00 -90,530.63 31.73%

1011 ꞏ Doubletime 5,354.31 33,100.00 -27,745.69 16.18%

1010 ꞏ Stand By  (pre-2008 Sick Pay) 40,774.09 92,500.00 -51,725.91 44.08%

1014 ꞏ Emergency Response Stipend 27,126.48 46,900.00 -19,773.52 57.84%

1015 ꞏ Certification Stipends 54,709.93 84,000.00 -29,290.07 65.13%

1016 ꞏ Longevity Pay 48,352.65 71,200.00 -22,847.35 67.91%

1005 ꞏ Contract Personnel 41,970.00 5,200.00 36,770.00 807.12%

1036 ꞏ Director's Compensation 33,356.40 80,600.00 -47,243.60 41.39%

Total 1001.1 ꞏ Salaries 1,971,574.56 4,617,500.00 -2,645,925.44 42.7%

1001.2 ꞏ Employee Benefits

1901 ꞏ COVID Leave 25,261.75 1,000.00 24,261.75 2,526.18%

1009 ꞏ Vacation/Sick Accrual 0.00 64,000.00 -64,000.00 0.0%

1037 ꞏ Directors Health Benefits 5,635.00 9,700.00 -4,065.00 58.09%

1404 ꞏ Social Security Expense 124,414.15 287,100.00 -162,685.85 43.34%

1502 ꞏ Group Life Insurance 5,744.89 8,700.00 -2,955.11 66.03%

1506 ꞏ Pension Expense

1507 ꞏ PERS 531,171.83 787,500.00 -256,328.17 67.45%

Total 1506 ꞏ Pension Expense 531,171.83 787,500.00 -256,328.17 67.45%

1509 ꞏ Health Insurance

1509.1 ꞏ Health Insurance-Actives 213,373.53 509,200.00 -295,826.47 41.9%

1509.3 ꞏ Health Insurance-Admin Fee 940.01 1,700.00 -759.99 55.3%

1509.2 ꞏ Health Insurance-Retirees 49,022.42 112,900.00 -63,877.58 43.42%

1509.4 ꞏ Health Insurance-OPEB Pre-fund 81,410.00 163,200.00 -81,790.00 49.88%

Total 1509 ꞏ Health Insurance 344,745.96 787,000.00 -442,254.04 43.81%

1510 ꞏ Dental Insurance 21,305.53 16,500.00 4,805.53 129.12%

1514 ꞏ Vision Services 2,255.68 3,300.00 -1,044.32 68.35%

1516 ꞏ Long Term Disability 16,402.19 34,100.00 -17,697.81 48.1%

2006 ꞏ Auto Allowance 4,543.92 16,800.00 -12,256.08 27.05%

Total 1001.2 ꞏ Employee Benefits 1,081,480.90 2,015,700.00 -934,219.10 53.65%

1006 ꞏ Payroll Processing Fees 12,117.55 24,900.00 -12,782.45 48.67%

Total 1001 ꞏ Employee Costs 3,065,173.01 6,658,100.00 -3,592,926.99 46.04%

2059 ꞏ Insurance

1701 ꞏ Workers Comp Insurance 138,848.00 72,900.00 65,948.00 190.46%

2060 ꞏ Fire, General Casualty & Liab 268,322.49 230,000.00 38,322.49 116.66%

2061 ꞏ Fidelity Bond 0.00 1,100.00 -1,100.00 0.0%

Total 2059 ꞏ Insurance 407,170.49 304,000.00 103,170.49 133.94%

2080 ꞏ Repairs and Maintenance

2083 ꞏ Vehicle Parts & Repairs 13,851.88 31,600.00 -17,748.12 43.84%

 Page 2 of 582



 1:40 PM
 02/01/23
 Accrual Basis

 Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District

 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 July through December 2022

Jul - Dec 22 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

2096 ꞏ Building Maintenance 11,380.36 96,300.00 -84,919.64 11.82%

2097 ꞏ Grounds Maintenance 31,374.27 109,300.00 -77,925.73 28.71%

2538 ꞏ Power Generation Maint.&  Rep 708.66 32,800.00 -32,091.34 2.16%

2365 ꞏ Equipment Maint 32,136.83 81,500.00 -49,363.17 39.43%

2366 ꞏ Equipment Repair 143,972.44 174,900.00 -30,927.56 82.32%

2367 ꞏ Capital Replacement 100,195.45 322,400.00 -222,204.55 31.08%

Total 2080 ꞏ Repairs and Maintenance 333,619.89 848,800.00 -515,180.11 39.31%

2331 ꞏ Reclamation Expenses

2332 ꞏ General - Reclamation expenses 0.00 9,500.00 -9,500.00 0.0%

2333 ꞏ Pasture Disk 98,452.90 123,900.00 -25,447.10 79.46%

2334 ꞏ Sludge Inject 102,650.00 102,700.00 -50.00 99.95%

2335 ꞏ Marsh Pond Vegitation Removal 0.00 60,000.00 -60,000.00 0.0%

Total 2331 ꞏ Reclamation Expenses 201,102.90 296,100.00 -94,997.10 67.92%

2101 ꞏ Chemicals and Lab Supplies

2107 ꞏ Hypochlorite 121,099.30 206,900.00 -85,800.70 58.53%

2110 ꞏ Bisulfite 40,949.12 85,400.00 -44,450.88 47.95%

2109 ꞏ Miscellaneous Chemicals 9,611.81 73,100.00 -63,488.19 13.15%

2115 ꞏ Laboratory Supplies 23,536.00 23,900.00 -364.00 98.48%

Total 2101 ꞏ Chemicals and Lab Supplies 195,196.23 389,300.00 -194,103.77 50.14%

2111 ꞏ Pollution Prevention

2119 ꞏ Pollution Prevention Contract 7,812.25 11,700.00 -3,887.75 66.77%

2111 ꞏ Pollution Prevention - Other 0.00 4,900.00 -4,900.00 0.0%

Total 2111 ꞏ Pollution Prevention 7,812.25 16,600.00 -8,787.75 47.06%

2117 ꞏ Lab Contract Services 17,078.75 54,400.00 -37,321.25 31.4%

2249 ꞏ Small Tools 8,881.27 24,600.00 -15,718.73 36.1%

2320 ꞏ Outside Services

2321 ꞏ Personnel & HR Services 23,279.24 160,600.00 -137,320.76 14.5%

2322 ꞏ General 13,320.72 22,000.00 -8,679.28 60.55%

2323 ꞏ Labor Relations 8,196.17 16,400.00 -8,203.83 49.98%

2324 ꞏ Janitorial 11,125.71 22,500.00 -11,374.29 49.45%

2326 ꞏ Other Outside Services 26,834.15 111,700.00 -84,865.85 24.02%

2327 ꞏ Uniform Maintenance 7,638.26 13,600.00 -5,961.74 56.16%

2360 ꞏ Other Consultants 108,515.10 198,700.00 -90,184.90 54.61%

Total 2320 ꞏ Outside Services 198,909.35 545,500.00 -346,590.65 36.46%

2330 ꞏ Damage Claims 0.00 20,000.00 -20,000.00 0.0%

2356 ꞏ Engineering

2354 ꞏ SCADA Engineering Support 37,530.39 67,200.00 -29,669.61 55.85%

2355 ꞏ Passthru 26,561.00 1,200.00 25,361.00 2,213.42%

2357 ꞏ Environmental 54,033.50 186,400.00 -132,366.50 28.99%

2358 ꞏ General Small Projects 8,443.53 14,700.00 -6,256.47 57.44%

2359 ꞏ Feasibility Studies 0.00 91,600.00 -91,600.00 0.0%

Total 2356 ꞏ Engineering 126,568.42 361,100.00 -234,531.58 35.05%

2362 ꞏ General Operating Supplies 9,958.66 61,400.00 -51,441.34 16.22%

2530 ꞏ Utilities

 Page 3 of 583



 1:40 PM
 02/01/23
 Accrual Basis

 Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District

 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 July through December 2022

Jul - Dec 22 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

2533 ꞏ Internet Services 4,965.58 7,800.00 -2,834.42 63.66%

2534 ꞏ Contract Telephone 18,716.65 49,600.00 -30,883.35 37.74%

2535 ꞏ Utility Power 310,228.80 476,100.00 -165,871.20 65.16%

2536 ꞏ Water 25,304.99 33,900.00 -8,595.01 74.65%

Total 2530 ꞏ Utilities 359,216.02 567,400.00 -208,183.98 63.31%

2501 ꞏ Fuels

2502 ꞏ Diesel 7,663.17 14,400.00 -6,736.83 53.22%

2503 ꞏ Propane 1,529.36 8,500.00 -6,970.64 17.99%

2504 ꞏ Vehicle Gas 10,308.22 12,700.00 -2,391.78 81.17%

2505 ꞏ Vehicle Natural Gas 1,005.07 4,200.00 -3,194.93 23.93%

2506 ꞏ Oil (vehicle and drum product) 3,014.82 3,200.00 -185.18 94.21%

Total 2501 ꞏ Fuels 23,520.64 43,000.00 -19,479.36 54.7%

2389 ꞏ Misc Safety Exp - Lgvsd only 43,522.36 49,000.00 -5,477.64 88.82%

2397 ꞏ Safety Contractor Services 28,368.00 57,400.00 -29,032.00 49.42%

2801 ꞏ Lateral Rehab Assistance Prog 20,000.00 59,800.00 -39,800.00 33.45%

2802 ꞏ Low-Income Sewer  Rate Ast Prog 784.00 50,000.00 -49,216.00 1.57%

2400 ꞏ General and Administrative

2499 ꞏ COVID-19 Expenses 0.00 1,700.00 -1,700.00 0.0%

2129 ꞏ Election Expenses 0.00 25,000.00 -25,000.00 0.0%

2133 ꞏ Office Supplies & Expense 27,082.79 42,800.00 -15,717.21 63.28%

2134 - Meeting Supplies & Expen 2,537.70 2,100.00 437.70 120.84%

2135 ꞏ Bank Charges 0.00 200.00 -200.00 0.0%

2137 ꞏ Donations to non-profits 9,000.00 10,000.00 -1,000.00 90.0%

2221 ꞏ Publications & Legal Ads 7,827.92 12,800.00 -4,972.08 61.16%

2223 ꞏ Public Education 31,688.47 74,700.00 -43,011.53 42.42%

2246 ꞏ Rents & Leases - Office & Equip 79,859.57 192,700.00 -112,840.43 41.44%

2264 ꞏ Taxes, Other 0.00 1,900.00 -1,900.00 0.0%

2272 ꞏ Memberships 43,470.84 69,100.00 -25,629.16 62.91%

2363 ꞏ Permits and Fees 56,124.31 119,300.00 -63,175.69 47.05%

2364 ꞏ Penalties and Fines 66,384.70

2477 ꞏ Conferences 26,454.02 52,600.00 -26,145.98 50.29%

2479 ꞏ Mileage & Travel 75.00 4,600.00 -4,525.00 1.63%

2713 ꞏ Legal 49,790.75 186,600.00 -136,809.25 26.68%

2716 ꞏ Computer Software & Services 53,339.62 97,600.00 -44,260.38 54.65%

2717 ꞏ Audit 22,250.00 27,200.00 -4,950.00 81.8%

2718 ꞏ Financial Services 449.00 35,400.00 -34,951.00 1.27%

9778 ꞏ User Chg / Collection Fee Exp. 22,077.36 36,900.00 -14,822.64 59.83%

9786 ꞏ Employee Recognition 6,070.95 5,600.00 470.95 108.41%

9787 ꞏ Employee Education & Training 9,121.39 49,400.00 -40,278.61 18.46%

9999 ꞏ Miscellaneous expense 0.01 4,200.00 -4,199.99 0.0%

Total 2400 ꞏ General and Administrative 513,604.40 1,052,400.00 -538,795.60 48.8%

9800 ꞏ Debt Service

9810 ꞏ Principal Payments

9811 ꞏ 2004 COP/Refunded Principal 630,000.00 630,000.00 0.00 100.0%

 Page 4 of 584



 1:40 PM
 02/01/23
 Accrual Basis

 Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District

 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 July through December 2022

Jul - Dec 22 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

9812 ꞏ IBank Principal 359,654.11 359,654.00 0.11 100.0%

9813 ꞏ State Revolving Fund Loan Princ 0.00 218,699.00 -218,699.00 0.0%

9814 ꞏ 2011Bank of Marin Loan Principa 137,350.35 237,888.00 -100,537.65 57.74%

9815 ꞏ 2012Bank of Marin Loan Principa 39,064.29 39,064.00 0.29 100.0%

9816 ꞏ 2017 Revenue Bonds Principal 0.00 1,110,000.00 -1,110,000.00 0.0%

Total 9810 ꞏ Principal Payments 1,166,068.75 2,595,305.00 -1,429,236.25 44.93%

9820 ꞏ Interest Payments

9821 ꞏ 2004 COP/Refunded Interest 44,530.20 78,665.00 -34,134.80 56.61%

9822 ꞏ IBank Loan Interest 164,740.18 324,086.00 -159,345.82 50.83%

9823 ꞏ State Revolving Fund Loan Inter 0.00 66,765.00 -66,765.00 0.0%

9824 ꞏ 2011Bank of Marin Loan Interest 56,713.80 94,794.00 -38,080.20 59.83%

9825 ꞏ 2012Bank of Marin Loan Interest 160.56 160.00 0.56 100.35%

9826 ꞏ 2017 Revenue Bonds Interest 667,500.00 1,335,000.00 -667,500.00 50.0%

Total 9820 ꞏ Interest Payments 933,644.74 1,899,470.00 -965,825.26 49.15%

9830 ꞏ Loan Annual Fees - IBank 32,948.03 32,948.00 0.03 100.0%

Total 9800 ꞏ Debt Service 2,132,661.52 4,527,723.00 -2,395,061.48 47.1%

Total Expense 7,693,148.16 15,986,623.00 -8,293,474.84 48.12%

 Page 5 of 585



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\02162023\ASR Mid-Year Budget Review.docx Page 1 of 4 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager 
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: February 16, 2023 

Re: Mid-Year Budget Report for Fiscal Year 2022-23 

Item Type:   Consent   Action        Information   X Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Receive budget report. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Board adopted the District’s Revenue, Operations and Maintenance, Debt Service, Reserve 
Funding, and Capital Outlay Budgets for Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-23 on June 16, 2022. Historically, 
a budget review is performed after the prior fiscal year-end is closed. Reallocation between 
budgetary line items is routinely done as needed during the course of any given year, but such 
reallocation does not automatically trigger a mid-year budget revision. 
 
Finance Policy F-40 establishes the procedures for reviewing and revising budgets, as needed. 
The Board retains the exclusive authority to increase the annual budget authority for Operational 
Expenditures. The General Manager has authority to approve budget transfers between operating 
departments and has the authority to approve budget transfers between capital projects. There is 
no requirement to adopt a mid-year budget revision unless the forecasted operating expenditures 
will exceed the adopted budget. 
 
Revenue forecasting is guided by Finance Policy F-60-40 and requires the District to estimate 
revenue conservatively through an objective, analytical process and requires explanation of 
significant variances. 
 
Budget projection methodology use varied based on the type of revenue or expense being 
reviewed. Actual revenue and expenses through December 2022 were used as the baseline to 
calculate anticipated revenue and expenses through June 30, 2023. Straight line forecasting 
based on recent historical data, applying a constant growth rate, was used for most expense line 
items. Prior year comparisons were completed for expenses that may have had seasonal peaks, 
such as chemical costs, to make sure forecasts were accurate for the remaining months of the 
fiscal year. Inflation or sharp increases for known expense line items, such as insurance, were 
added to the forecast formulas. 
 
Funds available to cover expenses and capital outlay include operating revenue, capacity related 
revenue, secured property tax revenue, grants, and the utilization of bond funds and reserves. 
 

Revenue 

Item Number_________3.6_____ 

GM Review   ______CP________ 

86

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\02162023\ASR Mid-Year Budget Review.docx Page 2 of 4 

Revenue is comprised of Operating Revenue, Non-Operating Revenue, and Capital Contributions 
/Capacity Related revenue. Revenue of $22,317,137 was identified in the FY 2022-23 budget.  
The total revenue as of June 30, 2023 is projected to be $20,391,142 which is an 8.6% overall 
decrease from what was anticipated. 
 

• Sewer Service Charges (SSC) revenue is lower as commercial customers used less water 
during the measurement periods of Summer of 2021 and Winter of 2022. It is suspected 
businesses were still affected by the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. 

• Recycled water revenue is the estimated cost of providing water to North Marin Water 
District (NMWD) and Marin Municipal Water District (MMWD) based on projected 
recoverable costs for the year. Lower expenses for equipment maintenance and no capital 
replacement expenditures at the new facilities resulted in lower overall costs even though 
there was an increase in water production. 

• Interest on reserves held in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) increased as the 
interest rate increased, from 0.75% on June 30, 2022 to 2.07% as of December 31, 2022. 

• Capacity Facility Charges collected are $1.36 M under budget. Revenue estimates were 
based on the full payment of connection fees at the time of Will-Serve approval. However, 
the District provides for payment of the connection fee over a two-year period. Talus 
Reserve paid the required 10% initial fee but the remaining 90% is not due until late 2023 
and 2024.  The Los Gamos Apartments project is expected to pay the initial 10% fee once 
their Will-Serve is approved. 

 
Reserves are not considered revenue but are included to provide Total Funds Available for 
Expenditures. Reserves include prior year capital project carryover funds, Capital Construction 
Project Reserve for the Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade and Recycled Water Expansion 
(STPURWE) project, and transfers from the Marin Lagoon and Captains Cove restricted funds. 
 
Operations and Maintenance: 
The adopted Operating and Maintenance (O&M) budget for FY 2022-23 is $11,458,900. The total 
O&M expense at year end is projected to be $10,427,244 which is 9% under budget. 
 
A budget summary and 
O&M Expense financial 
worksheet is included in 
this report. 
 
Notes are included on the 
O&M Expense worksheet 
explaining the variances 
between the projected end 
of year totals compared to 
the totals in the adopted 
budget. 

 
 
 
Debt Service 

87



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\02162023\ASR Mid-Year Budget Review.docx Page 3 of 4 

Projected end of year is $4,527,723 and will match the adopted budget. The 2010 State Revolving 
Fund Loan payment of $285,464 will be made in April. 
 
Reserves 
The District has established a combined reserve target goal of $15,085,466, set by Finance Policy 
F-50.  The District requires reserves for operations and capital needs. Reserves provide financing 
safeguards for the District's operations. Such funds are available for extraordinary expenses and 
to fund cash flow. In addition, reserve fund investments generate earnings to supplement other 
revenues. The reserves are available for specific Board approved use. 
 
The combined current reserve balance is $7,766,782.  The Capital Reserves are held in both the 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) and the Bank of Marin Business Money Market Account 
which was setup to receive Marin Municipal Water District (MMWD) Buy-In payments and their 
share of 2017 Bond debt payments.  The Board will have an opportunity to review and reallocate 
capital reserves to other projects once the STPURWE project is complete. 
 
Restricted Funds 
Transfers from Marin Lagoon and Captains Cove restricted funds are used to pay for annual 
operating expenses related to pump station maintenance in these areas. Prior year capital 
expenditures for the Marin Lagoon Pump Station No. 1 Improvements exceeded the balance in 
the Marin Lagoon Restricted Fund.  The additional Sewer Service Surcharge for both Marin 
Lagoon and Captains Cove have been received from the County, were transferred to their 
respective fund in February, and are reflected in the projected end of year balance. 
 
Capital Projects 
Current year funding allocation for capital projects is sufficient for the completion of the capital 
projects identified through June 30, 2023.  Any need to reallocate funds between authorized 
projects will be handled administratively and will be presented with the capital improvement 
program with the 2023-24 budget. 
 

 
Capital outlay makes up the largest percentage of projected expenditures at 42%. Salary and 
Operations & Maintenance combined is projected to be 36%. 

 

88



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\02162023\ASR Mid-Year Budget Review.docx Page 4 of 4 

The Capital Improvement Plan for FY 2022-23 is included for review at the end of this report. It 
shows identified mid-year funding transfers, actual expenditures through December, and 
estimated expenditures through the June 30, 2023.  Recently, actual annual capital expenditures 
have been less than what was budgeted. 
 

 
 
Fewer capital projects will be completed in the current fiscal year, with only $10,295,471 of the 
prior year capital project carryover funds being used this year. Unspent capital project funding in 
the amount of $16,510,406 will carry forward to the next fiscal year for future and continuing 
project costs. 
 
Summary 

The Mid-Year Budget report provides an opportunity for the Board to review the budget as staff 
begins the budget process for FY 2023-24. 

Based on the mid-year budget review, there is no need to revise the current year budget. 

 

REVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
Resolution No. 2022-2261 fixing and approving the budget for the fiscal year 2022-23 was 
adopted on June 16, 2022. 
 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None. 

89



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

Mid-Year Budget Report 
of 

Fiscal Year 2022-23 

February 16, 2023 

90



2022-23 2022-23
Adopted Projected

Budget Actuals

Beginning Balance (July 1): 35,050,306$        35,050,306$       

     Revenue:

        Rate Revenues (1) 16,910,508$        16,141,199$       
        Other Operating revenue (1) 248,770               274,318              
        Non-operating revenue (1) 2,223,923            2,372,372           
        Capital / Capacity Related 2,933,936            1,603,252           

     Expenditures:

        Operating expense (2) (11,458,900)         (10,427,244)        
        Debt Service (3) (4,527,723)           (4,527,723)          
        Capital outlay (23,318,068)         (12,211,523)        

Ending Balance (June 30): 18,062,752$        28,274,959$       

2022-23 2022-23
Adopted Projected

   DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO (DSCR) Budget Actuals

      Net Operating Income (NOI) = (1) - (2) 7,924,301$          8,360,646$         
      Total Debt Service = (3) 4,527,723$          4,527,723$         
      DSCR = NOI  / Debt Service  (Estimate *) 1.75 1.85

HDR Engineering used 2.7% inflation factor in April 2021 Sewer Service Charge Rate Study. Actual annual inflation rate of 6.5% as of Feb.2023. 
HDR Engineering Sewer Service Charge Rate Study DSCR target for 2022-23, after rate increase, is 2.18.

   *  Actual DSCR will be determined at the end of the fiscal year based on actual revenue and expenditures.

   ACCOUNTS SUMMARY As of June 30, 2022 As of December 31, 2022
Cash in Bank and On Hand:

      Bank of Marin - Various Accounts 11,808,594$        6,837,708$         
      Petty Cash - Unrestricted 648                       576                     
      Total cash in bank and on hand 11,809,242          6,838,284           

   Investments:
      Certificates of Deposit - Restricted 904,587               906,839              
      Local Agency Investment Fund - Restricted/Reserves 7,766,782            7,766,782           
      Local Agency Investment Fund - Unrestricted & PY Carryover 14,001,812          18,116,777         
      Total investments 22,673,182          26,790,397         

        Other
          US Bank Bond & Cost of Issuance Funds 123                       123                     
          IBank Installment Sale Agreement (4) 567,760               567,760              

TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS 35,050,306          34,196,564         

  (4) Considered cash for accounting purposes while held by IBank until disbursement for expenditures occur.

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
BALANCE STATEMENT & ACCOUNT INFORMATION

MID-YEAR REPORT - FEBRUARY 16, 2023

   BALANCE STATEMENT

Last update:2/9/2023 1 of 191



2021-22 2022-23 2022-23 2022-23
Revenue Final Adopted 6-month Projected % of

Description Audited Actual Budget Actuals End of Year Budget

OPERATING REVENUE

Sewer Service User Charges 15,491,846$      16,910,508$     9,793,439$       16,141,199$   95.5%

Recycled Water (MMWD / NMWD) 127,742             172,000            80,771              80,771            47.0%

Inspections/Permits/Application Fee 67,176               75,520              19,250              97,250            128.8%
Miscellaneous Operating Revenue 500                    1,250                96,097              96,297            7703.8%

Total Operating Revenue 15,687,264        17,159,278       9,989,557         16,415,517     95.7%

NON-OPERATING REVENUE

Property Tax 1,106,077          1,262,092         643,434            1,214,027       96.2%

Suppl. Property Tax Assess. 36,265               27,695              4,959                9,357              33.8%

Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund 559,681             584,867            49,468              554,322          94.8%

Homeowner Property Tax Relief 4,323                 4,453                642                   4,038              90.7%

Franchise Fees Marin Sanitary Service 162,382             169,776            81,217              162,435          95.7%

Private Sewer Lateral Assistance Program 101,082             79,300              51,350              86,706            109.3%

Interest Income 4,067                 2,640                1,326                2,652              100.5%

Interest on Reserves and LAIF 106,612             68,100              75,400              300,684          441.5%
Reimbursements / Pass thru -                         25,000              28,151              38,151            152.6%

2,080,487          2,223,923         935,947            2,372,372       106.7%

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS / CAPACITY RELATED 

Annex, Capital Facility Charges, Connection Fees 468,273             1,740,572         288,689            378,684          21.8%

Interest on Connection Fee Fund 750                    964                   222                   628                 65.2%

Interest on Bond Funds 7                        7                       -                        3                     44.3%
Marin Municipal Water District Inter-Governmental 463,269             619,633            78,527              631,177          101.9%

IBank Loan Disbursements 5,124,515          567,760            -                        567,760          100.0%

Federal Grants -                   -                  -                        -               -
State Grants 645,535             5,000                -                        25,000            500.0%

6,702,350          2,933,936         367,438            1,603,252       54.6%

TOTAL REVENUES 24,470,101$      22,317,137$     11,292,943$     20,391,142$   91.4%

UTILIZATION OF BOND FUNDS AND RESERVES
2021-22      

Actual Use
Adopted 
Available 6-Month Actuals

2022-23 
Projected Use

 % of 
Budget 

Operating Reserves / Rate Stabilization -                   -                  -                  -               N/A

Private Sewer Lateral Assistance Funds -                   59,800              20,000              50,000            83.6%

PY Capital Outlay Carryover Utilized 8,673,100          16,268,568       3,024,153         10,295,471     63.3%

Capital Construction Project Reserve for STPURWE 3,389,949          800,000            -                  800,000          100.0%
Interest Earned on Unspent IBank Funds 5,104                 -                  1,578                1,578              -

Transfers from Marin Lagoon Restricted Fund 142,989             107,700            -                  68,187            63.3%
Transfers from Captains Cove Restricted Fund 63,793               12,400              -                  16,168            130.4%

Transfers from Capacity Connection Fee Fund 200,000             -                  -                  -               N/A

    SUB TOTAL 12,474,935        17,248,468       3,045,731         11,231,404     65.1%

TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE FOR EXPENDITURES 36,945,036$      39,565,605$     31,622,546$   79.9%

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
REVENUE

MID-YEAR REPORT  FY 2022-2023  - FEBRUARY 16, 2023

Last update:2/9/2023 1 of 192



2021-22 2022-23 2022-23 2022-23
Final Adopted 6-Month Projected % Over % of

Actual Budget Actuals End of Year Budget Budget

OPERATING EXPENSES

   EMPLOYEE WAGES 3,984,223         4,618,500       1,810,886        4,200,642          (417,858)           91.0%

   EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 2,002,674         2,014,700       1,051,959        1,862,807          (151,893)           92.5%

   INSURANCE EXPENSE 256,721            304,000          269,904           269,904             (34,096)             88.8%

   REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE 684,288            1,042,200       427,407           888,342             (153,858)           85.2%

   SUPPLIES & SMALL TOOLS 481,347            624,700          267,528           576,538             (48,162)             92.3%

   CONTRACTED SERVICES 1,009,513         1,459,300       373,579           1,075,844          (383,456)           73.7%

   UTILITIES 643,438            567,400          348,948           788,498             221,098            139.0%

   GENERAL & ADMINSTRATIVE 445,919            828,100          489,352           764,667             (63,433)             92.3%

   OPERATING EXPENSE TOTALS 9,508,124$       11,458,900$   5,039,564$      10,427,244$      (1,031,656)$      91.0%

DEBT SERVICE

   DEBT SERVICE TOTALS 4,728,310$       4,527,723$     4,080,665$      4,527,723$        -$                      100.0%

RESERVE FUNDING

   OPERATING RESERVE 787,964            635,195          -                       635,195             -                        100.0%

   RATE STABILIZATION -                        -                      -                       -                        -                        -

   EMERGENCY REPAIR -                        -                      -                       -                        -                        -

   CAPITAL RESERVES 864,274            336,464          -                       872,678             536,214            259.4%

   VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT (VERF) 379,090            150,755          -                       150,755             -                        100.0%

   CAPACITY  (RESTRICTED FUND) 470,689            1,741,536       288,911           379,312             (1,362,224)        21.8%

   CAPTAINS COVE (RESTRICTED FUND) 48,025              16,025            1                      26,476               10,451              165.2%

   MARIN LAGOON (RESTRICTED FUND) 74,372              21,106            12                    64,106               43,000              303.7%

   RESERVE FUNDING TOTALS 2,624,414$       2,901,081$     288,924$         2,128,523$        (772,558)$         73.4%
  

CAPITAL OUTLAY

   CAPITAL OUTLAY 12,784,041$     23,318,068$   3,337,165$      12,211,523$      (11,106,545)$    52.4%

TOTAL BUDGET

   TOTAL BUDGET 29,644,889$     42,205,772$   12,746,318$    29,295,013$      (12,910,759)$    69.4%

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
BUDGET SUMMARY

MID-YEAR REPORT  FY 2022-2023  - FEBRUARY 16, 2023

Last update:2/9/2023 1 of 193



2021-22 2022-23 2022-23 2022-23

Acct. Final Adopted 6-Month Projected
Num. Actual Budget Actuals End of Year Notes

EMPLOYEE WAGES
1003 Regular Staff Salaries  (1901) 3,364,837$   4,072,400$     1,539,941$     3,601,214$     Recruitment of EIT position has not occurred

1004 Extra Hire  (1005) 107,039        5,200              39,870           71,470            Temp help from OTS for EIT, Plant Ops, and Lab

1008 Over Time  (1011) 148,502        165,700          40,830           88,396            

1010 Stand By 84,048          92,500            37,803           78,872            

1014 Emergency Response Stipend 45,626          46,900            25,003           56,030            

1015 Certification Stipend 88,416          84,000            49,933           130,678          More employees obtaining Dual and Triple Cert

1016 Longevity Pay 66,350          71,200            44,149           100,627          Increased along with salary for long term employees

1036 Directors Fees 79,405          80,600          33,356         73,356          

TOTAL EMPLOYEE WAGES 3,984,223     4,618,500     1,810,886    4,200,642     

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
1009 Vacation and Sick Accrual 79,455          64,000            -                     80,000            

1901 COVID-19 Leave 11,466          -                     22,742           22,742            

1037 Directors Benefits 9,438            9,700              5,635             10,374            

1404 Payroll Taxes (SSI) 270,260        287,100          116,552         241,586          

1502 Group Life Insurance 6,802            8,700              4,898             9,859              

1507 PERS 839,477        787,500          518,222         722,205          

1509 Health Insurance 723,307        787,000          344,631         695,628          

1510 Dental Insurance 21,459          16,500            19,271           39,078            

1514 Vision Insurance 2,786            3,300              1,877             3,812              

1516 Long Term Disability 24,045          34,100            13,966           28,613            

2006 Auto Allowance 9,582            16,800            4,165             8,910              

2007 Commute Vehicle Stipend 4,597            -                   -                   -                   

TOTAL EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 2,002,674     2,014,700     1,051,959    1,862,807     

INSURANCE
1701 Workers' Comp Insurance 65,489          72,900            138,848         138,848          FY 22-23 includes $30,541 from WC audit of FY 21-22

2060 Pooled Liability & Property Insurance 190,185        230,000          129,956         129,956          Prop insurance to increase after STPURWE completion

2061 Fidelity Bond 1,047            1,100            1,100           1,100            

TOTAL INSURANCE EXPENSE 256,721        304,000        269,904       269,904        

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE
2083 Vehicle Parts & Maintenance 32,106          31,600            12,991           26,074            

2096 Building maintenance 26,506          96,300            9,786             54,471            

2097 Grounds Maintenance 62,964          109,300          31,374           102,354          

2331 Reclamation Pasture and Pond Maint.      99,738          193,400          98,453           178,925          

2538 Power Generation Maint & Repair 26,528          32,800            709                1,081              Solar panel and related components

2365 Equipment Maintenance 65,152          81,500            30,049           52,667            

2366 Equipment Repair 311,717        174,900          143,850         265,575          Maintenance department addressing deferred repairs

2367 Capital Repairs/Replacements 59,578          322,400        100,195       207,195        Evaluating, expenses may rise in FY 22-23

TOTAL REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE 684,288        1,042,200     427,407       888,342        

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSE

Expense Description

MID-YEAR REPORT  FY 2022-2023  - FEBRUARY 16, 2023

Last update:2/9/2023 1 of 394



2021-22 2022-23 2022-23 2022-23

Acct. Final Adopted 6-Month Projected
Num. Actual Budget Actuals End of Year Notes

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSE

Expense Description

MID-YEAR REPORT  FY 2022-2023  - FEBRUARY 16, 2023

SUPPLIES & SMALL TOOLS

2107 Hypochlorite 117,444        206,900          113,810         258,588          Hypo increase during wet weather periods

2110 Bisulfite 62,299          85,400            19,909           43,137            Bisulfite use increase during wet weather periods

2109 Miscellaneous Chemicals 45,670          73,100            9,612             43,824            

2362 General Operating & Lab Supplies (2115) 87,564          85,300            27,253           49,630            

2501 Fuel, Oil, and CNG for Vehicles (2501-250 44,383          43,000            23,431           49,569            

2389 Safety Equipment & Supplies 47,240          49,000            42,803           62,417            Satellite phones, new AEDs, new employees

2397 Safety Services 58,825          57,400            23,640           56,736            Du-All

2249 Small Tools 17,923          24,600          7,071           12,639          

TOTAL SUPPLIES & SMALL TOOLS 481,347        624,700        267,528       576,538        

CONTRACTED SERVICES
2117 Lab Contract Services 50,271          54,400            12,613           38,226            

2119 Pollution Prevention Program 15,451          16,600          7,812           14,812          

2320 Outside Services  (2321, 2322, 2323, 2326 164,626        310,700          68,537           135,557          Various consultants, closer to prior year than budgeted

2324 Janitorial 23,507          22,500            9,506             22,706            

2327 Uniform Service 13,112          13,600            7,115             14,230            

2330 Damage Claim 10,000          20,000            -                     -                     

2334 Sludge Disposal Inject 96,919          102,700          -                     102,650          

2354 SCADA Engineering Support -                   67,200            37,530           77,146            

2357 Regulatory Consultant 163,593        186,400          35,570           174,886          EOA

2358 Engine. Pass-thru & Gen. Small Projects 14,411          15,900            -                     50,667            Pass-thru expenses offset by pass-thu revenue

2359 Feasibility Studies 75,711          91,600            -                     66,000            NBWRA for Sea Level Rise and Drought Contingency

2360 Consultants - Other 112,538        198,700          102,144         195,419          

2713 Legal 190,966        186,600          49,606           107,373          

2717 Audit 27,160          27,200            22,250           22,750            

2718 Financial Services 4,849            35,400            449                2,402              For actuarial and accounting CPA services

2801 Private Lateral Rehab Assist. Program 46,400          59,800            20,000           50,000            

2802 Low-Income Rate Assistance Program -                   50,000          448              1,020            

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 1,009,513     1,459,300     373,579       1,075,844     

UTILITIES
2533 Internet 7,905            7,800              4,149             8,374              

2534 Telephone 48,177          49,600            18,418           37,590            

2535 Utility Power 557,748        476,100          310,229         709,759          Increased electrical costs until solar generation online

2536 Water 29,609          33,900          16,153         32,774          

TOTAL UTILITIES 643,438        567,400        348,948       788,498        

Last update:2/9/2023 2 of 395



2021-22 2022-23 2022-23 2022-23

Acct. Final Adopted 6-Month Projected
Num. Actual Budget Actuals End of Year Notes

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSE

Expense Description

MID-YEAR REPORT  FY 2022-2023  - FEBRUARY 16, 2023

GENERAL & ADMINSTRATIVE

1006 Payroll Processing 23,438          24,900            12,118           12,118            

2477 Conferences 21,592          52,600            24,694           42,740            

2479 Mileage and Travel 920               4,600              50                  2,499              

2129 Election -                   25,000            -                     -                     

2133 Office Supplies 37,887          42,800            21,106           44,545            

2134 Meeting Supplies 2,689            2,100              1,862             4,344              Includes Safety Luncheon meetings

2716 Computer Services and Software 50,065          97,600            49,582           97,272            Includes CORE IT services, excludes SaaS annual licen

2135 Bank Charges 1,850            200                 -                     1,850              

9778 User Charge Collection Fee 35,363          36,900            22,077           33,116            County Property Tax and SSC Collection Fees 

2221 Publication and Legal  Ads 13,079          12,800            6,207             11,434            

2223 Public Education and Outreach (1) 45,975          74,700            28,733           70,522            

2264 Taxes, Other 1,949            1,900              -                     1,900              Use tax, out of state sales tax

2272 Memberships (CASA, CSDA, NBWRA, etc 49,526          69,100            43,038           65,789            

2363 Permits (NPDES, Biosolids, BAAQCD, etc 64,320          119,300          56,092           83,447            NPDES, BAAQMD, Biosolids, stormwater, etc.

2364 Penalties & Fines -                   -                     66,385           66,769            

2246 Rents and Leases 65,694          192,700          79,741           142,354          101 LVR rent, generators, copiers, postage meter

9786 Employee Recognition (1) 1,893            5,600              6,071             7,571              

9787 Employee Training and Education (1) 13,373          49,400            6,889             10,889            Management training budgeted for has not occurred

9999 Miscellaneous expense  (2137, 2499) 16,305          15,900          64,706         65,506          Includes $56,700 JSilver settlement, COVID-19, & misc

TOTAL GENERAL & ADMINSTRATIVE 445,919        828,100        489,352       764,667        

OPERATING EXPENSE TOTALS 9,508,124$   11,458,900$   5,039,564$     10,427,244$   

Last update:2/9/2023 3 of 396



2021-22 2022-23 2022-23
Total Adopted Projected
Actual Budget End of Year

2005 Certificates of Participation/
Refunded 2014 709,125$               708,665$                  708,665$         

2010 State Revolving Fund Loan 285,464                 285,464                    285,464           

2011 Bank of Marin Loan 332,681                 332,681                    332,681           

2012 Bank of Marin Loan 235,346                 39,224                      39,224             

2017 Revenue Bonds (1) (2) 2,447,800              2,445,000                 2,445,000        

2019 IBank Loan 717,892                 716,688                    716,688           

4,728,310$            4,527,723$               4,527,723$      

(1) Includes treatment plant upgrade, recycled water treatment plant expansion and operations control center.

(2) Per Board action on May 25, 2017, amounts collected for the treatment plant upgrade and operations
  control center projects prior to the bonds being issued were reclassified as Reserves and are reflected in
  the Reserve Budget for all years presented.

Principal Annual Fee

2005 Certificates of Participation/
Refunded 2014 630,000$               -$                    

2010 State Revolving Fund Loan 218,699                 -                      
-                      

2011 Bank of Marin Loan 237,888                 -                      
-                      

2012 Bank of Marin Loan 39,064                   Final payment Aug 2022
-                      

2017 Revenue Bonds 1,110,000              -                      
-                      

2019 IBank Loan (4) 359,654                 32,948             

2,595,306$            32,948$           

(4) Annual IBank fee treated as Operation & Maintenance Expense but recognized as debt service for budget purposes.

Expenditure

Debt  Service  Breakdown FY 2022-23

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
DEBT SERVICE

MID-YEAR REPORT  FY 2022-2023  - FEBRUARY 16, 2023

Expenditure

Last update:2/9/2023 1 of 197



2021-22 2022-23 2022-23 2022-23
Actual Adopted 6-Month Projected

Budget Actuals End of Year

Beginning Reserve Balance 7,911,256$     5,715,213$     5,715,213$   5,715,213$      

Operating & Rate Stabilization Reserve
Beginning Balance 2,185,612$     2,973,576$     2,973,576$   2,973,576$      

Plus: Additions 787,964          635,195          -                    635,195           
Less: Use of Funds -                      -                      -                       

Ending Balance 2,973,576$     3,608,771$     2,973,576$   3,608,771$      
Purpose: Insure minimum of 7 months of O&M + Debt Service is available Target

Rate Stabilization (Final year FY 2021-22 )
Beginning Balance 300,000$        -$                -$              -$                 

Plus: Additions -                      -                      -                    -                       
Less: Use of Funds / Transfer to Ops Reserve (300,000)        -                    

Ending Balance -$                    -$                    -$                  -$                     
Combined with Operating Reserve per Policy F-50 on 5-16-22 Target

Emergency Repair -                -                -                 
Beginning Balance 1,000,000$     1,000,000$     1,000,000$   1,000,000$      

Plus: Additions -                   -                   -                      
Less: Use of Funds -                   -                   -                      

Ending Balance 1,000,000$     1,000,000$     1,000,000$   1,000,000$      
Purpose: Fund emergency repairs, replenish over 2 to 3 year period. Target

Capital Reserves (STPURWE, OCC, and other CIP)
Beginning Balance 3,425,644$     899,969$        899,969$      899,969$         

Plus: Undesignated 229,727          336,464          -                    336,464           
Plus: STPURWE LGVSD Bond Reserve (1) 222,915          -                       -                    225,715           
Plus: STPURWE MMWD Buy-In (2) 154,911          -                      -              53,779             
Plus: 2017 Bond MMWD Debt Service Share  (3) 256,720          -                      -              256,720           
Plus: Corr. to incld. PY BoM MMWD Reserves (4) -                -                      2,051,569     2,051,569        
Less: Authorized Use of Funds (3,389,949)     (800,000)        -                    (800,000)          

Ending Balance 899,969$        436,433$        2,951,538$   3,024,217$      
Purpose: To provide capital for major capital projects. Target

Vehicle and Equipment Reserve (VERF)
Beginning Balance 1,000,000$     841,668$        841,668$      841,668$         

Plus: Additions 379,090          150,755          -                    150,755           
Less: Authorized Use of Funds (537,422)        (480,000)        -                    (466,970)          

Ending Balance 841,668$        512,423$        841,668$      525,453$         
Purpose: To fund large vehicle and equipment replacements. Target

Ending Reserve Balance 5,715,213$     5,557,627$     7,766,782$   8,158,440$      

Target
(1) Excess funds over debt payments put aside for project.

(2) MMWD quarterly buy-in payments down to $26,890 beginning August 2023 - Held in Bank of Marin (BoM) Bus Money Market (BMM) #3983

(3) MMWD semi-annual Revenue Bond payments toward project - Held in Bank of Marin (BoM) Bus Money Market (BMM) #3983

(4) Bank of Marin (BoM) contributions from prior year MMWD buy-ins not included in Capital Reserve balance, corrected as of 12/31/22.

      Authorized use of funds towards STPURWE project to draw down BoM MMWD account and LAIF Capital Reserves in Spring 2023.

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

MID-YEAR REPORT  FY 2022-2023  - FEBRUARY 16, 2023
RESERVES

Last update:2/9/2023 1 of 198



2021-22 2022-23 2022-23 2022-23
Actual Adopted 6-Month Projected

Budget Actuals End of Year

Restricted Funds

Capacity / Capital Facilities / Connection Fee Fund (#5025)
Beginning Balance 316,998$       587,687$       587,687$      587,687$         

Plus: Additions 470,689         1,741,536      288,911        379,312           
Less: Use of Funds (200,000)      -                   -                     

Ending Balance 587,687$       2,329,223$    967,000$         
Purpose: To pay for collection system and plant capacity improvements to serve new connections.

Captains Cove Fund (#5019)
Beginning Balance 17,266$         1,498$           1,498$          1,498$             

Plus: Additions 48,025           16,025           1                   26,476             
Less: Use of Funds (63,793)        (12,400)        -                  (16,168)          

Ending Balance 1,498$           5,123$           11,806$           
Purpose: Special assessment fees in and class account 350 expenses out. 

Marin Lagoon Fund (#5005)
Beginning Balance 84,595$         15,978$         15,978$        15,978$           

Plus: Additions 74,372           21,106           12                 64,106             
Less: Use of Funds (1) (142,989)      (107,700)      -                  (68,187)          

Ending Balance 15,978$         (70,616)$        11,898$           
Purpose: Special assessment fees in and class account 360 expenses out. 

(1) Prior Year Capital Expenditures for Marin Lagoon Pump Station #1 to be recovered over multiple years as balance insufficient
    to cover entire cost of project.   

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
RESTRICTED FUNDS

MID-YEAR REPORT  FY 2022-2023  - FEBRUARY 16, 2023

Last update:2/9/2023 1 of 199



 Line 
No.  Mgr.  Project No. 

Acco
unt Project Name

Year 1 Budget  
2022-23 

 Mid-Year 
Funding 

Transfers 
FY 22-23 

 Actual 
Expenditures 
Thru 12/3/22 

 Estimated 
Thru EOY 
June 30, 

2023 

 Est. 
Carryover 
Balance at 

EOY 2022-23 

PLANNING, SOFTWARE, & OTHER ENGINEERING

1 MC 20100-05 4362 Integrated Wastewater Master Plan Phase 2 and Phase 3 (combined)  (1)            448,910        305,000              21,869          150,000          605,979 

2 MC 20100-05 4362 Integrated Wastewater Master Plan Phase 3 (combined with Phase 2) 1)            100,000      (305,000)                      -                      - 
3 MC 21500-08 4859 Biosolids System Improvement Analysis            107,000        (47,000)              66,108            60,000                     0 

4 MC 21500-08 4859 Biosolids Well Monitoring Design and Construction            300,000      (173,264)          110,000            16,736 

5 MC 21500-08 4859 Biosolids Program Research and Project Support Services                        -        460,264          200,000          260,264 

6 MC 21500-08 4859 Biosolids Flood Protection Plan Phase 1                        -          99,955            99,955                      - 

7 MC  22600-01 4299 Asset Management Onboarding Task 2-4 CMMS CityWorks            400,000          250,000          198,676 

8 MC  22125-01 4870 Sea Level Rise Mitigation Program Design            100,000                   432            60,000            40,000 

9 MC  22125-02 4871 Standard Specifications and Drawings Update Project              50,000            40,000            35,000 

10 MC 20125-01 4117 On-Call Engineering Contract            210,000        (52,707)                8,514          100,000          128,607 

11 MC  22125-03 4117 On-Call Inspection              44,910            40,000              4,910 

12 MC  22125-04 4117  On-Call Construction Contract (2021-2023)            100,000                   383          100,000            80,569 

13 GP  22200-01 4872 IT Pipes Software Upgrade for Video Interface w/CityWorks              35,000            35,000                      - 

14 GP  17200-03 4413 City Works Azteca Annual Licensing plus ESRI license              40,000            40,000                      - 

15 GP  22200-02 4873 Fleet Maintenance Software annual licenses                2,160                   782              1,500                 660 

16 DM 20100-01 4825 Accounting ERP Integration              53,798            53,000            35,734 

17 DM 22100-01 4361 Website Improvement - O&M beginning in FY 22-23              25,000            25,000 

18 MC 21125-02 4821 Drafting Software for Eng. Computer Upgrade                6,000              6,000                      - 

19 MC 23200-01 4808 Hydraulic Modeling of Collection System            200,000          52,707              31,650          180,000            72,707 

20 MC 21300-07, 
21500-07, & 

21600-16

4833  
4843  
4856

Arc Flash Study                        -          11,118              11,118            11,118                     (0)

 Subtotal:          2,222,778        351,073            140,855       1,536,573        1,504,843 

FLEET & EQUIPMENT (To be procured through Vehicle Replacement Fund) and OTHER EQUIPMENT

27     GP  22200-03 4801  Smart Covers (3) Additional in FY 22-23              22,000            22,000                      - 

28     GP  23200-02 4154-
4

 4" Trash Pump w/ trailer              90,000        (32,000)              39,970            39,970            18,030 

29     GP  23200-03 4884  2023 Cushman Hauler 800X Electric Carts (2)           32,000            32,000                      - 

30     GP  Pending 4154  2023 Ford Transit Cargo Van Hybrid for Camera              45,000          10,000            50,000                      - 

31     GP  Pending 4154  2023 Hybrid Fleet to replace CMAX              45,000            45,000                      - 

32     GP  Pending 4154  2023 Vac-Con Flusher Truck - clean diesel  (upon Board approval)            305,000          305,000                      - 

 Subtotal:             507,000                   -              39,970          493,970            18,030 

COLLECTION SYSTEM (INCL. PUMP STATIONS "PS" & FORCE MAINS)

39  MC  11200-03 4377  John Duckett PS & HWY 101 Terra Linda Trunk Sewer Design            730,927      (140,000)                8,042            50,000        1,153,688 

40  MC  12300-05 4246  Rafael Meadows Pump Station - Electrical Generator Standby             160,000                   597          100,000            60,000 

41  MC 20300-09 4828  Smith Ranch Pump Station Electrical Upgrades            300,000            35,000          265,000 

42 MC 20200-01 4153 Force Main Assessment, Cleaning, Location Marking, & Mapping            350,000              14,787            35,000          315,000 

43  MC  21300-03 4830  Standby/Towable Generators for Minor Pump Stations            357,044          67,896              26,143          150,000          316,125 

44  MC  21350-01 4834  Automatic Transfer Switches for Pump Stations            260,000            35,000          225,000 

45  MC  21300-04 4831  Pump Station Site Lighting, Safety, & Security Improvements            241,877            35,000          206,877 

46  MC  21600-01 4835  Emergency Bypass Pumping Analysis & Response Plan            105,000            35,000            70,000 

47  MC  22300-01 4874  Rafael Meadows Pump Station - Civil, fencing, other            180,000      (180,000)                      - 

48  MC  22300-02 4875  Mulligan PS wet well upgrade              60,000        (60,000)                      - 

49  GP  19200-02 4153  Manhole Frame & Cover Adjustment Allowance              50,000            30,000          112,029 

50  MC  21300-06 4832  Fencing Improvements at Various Locations              60,000        (48,000)            12,000                      - 

51 MC 21600-03 4837  Annual Facility Paving at Various Locations              35,000            35,000                      - 

52 MC  20600-03 4217  Smith Ranch CNG Filling Station Function              45,000        145,000            183,707          190,000                      - 

53  GP  18350-01 4238  Captains Cove Pump Station Upgrades(2)              50,000            25,000            25,000 

54  MC  Begin 23-24 4153  Sewer Main Collection System Rehabilitation Program         1,000,000                      -        1,000,000 

55  GP  Pending 4162  SCADA Integration & Control Panel Repl. for Pump Stations             250,000          250,000 

56  GP  23300-01 4485  110 HP Spare Pump for John Duckett PS                         -        140,000          138,000              2,000 

57  MC  20200-01 4153  Install Ports in PSs, includ. in Proj. 20200-01.              30,000            30,000                      - 

58  GP  21300-06 4832  Hawthorn Pump Station Fencing - Second Fence line              25,000                6,613              6,613            18,387 

59  MC  22300-04 4173  Venetia Harbor Pump Station Block Wall                       -         48,000            48,000                      - 

61  MC  18360-01 4481  Marin Lagoon Pump Station No.1- final billing in July 2022                        -          18,364              18,364            18,364            41,680 

74  GP  21300-06 4832  Hawthorn Pump Station Fencing - 1st Fence project                       -              7,155 

 Subtotal:          4,289,848          (8,740)            258,253       1,007,977        4,067,941 

Capital Improvement Plan for FY 2022-23
(Mid-Year Budget Report - February 16, 2023)

 Adopted 

Page 1 of 2 Printed: 2/9/2023 6:26 AM100



 Line 
No.  Mgr.  Project No. 

Acco
unt Project Name

Year 1 Budget  
2022-23 

 Mid-Year 
Funding 

Transfers 
FY 22-23 

 Actual 
Expenditures 
Thru 12/3/22 

 Estimated 
Thru EOY 
June 30, 

2023 

 Est. 
Carryover 
Balance at 

EOY 2022-23 

 Adopted 

RECLAMATION

79  GP  21500-01 4838  Reclamation Pump Station Improvements            130,000             (239)                1,110              1,110          133,651 

80  MC  22300-03 4876  St. Vincent's Pump Station Improvements            100,000        (99,716)                   284                 284                     0 

81 MC 21500-04 4841 Reclamation Pasture Irrigation System Assessment Study              45,000        (45,000)                      - 

82 MC 11500-09 4412 Miller Creek Vegetation Maintenance repair, maint.              75,000              30,429            50,000            25,000 

83  MC  22500-04 4330  Solar PV System Replacement            300,000            50,000          265,000 

84  MC  Pending  Reclamation Pond Diversion Boxes            175,000          (1,180)          120,000            53,820 

85  MC  Pending  Reclamation Staging Area              60,000            60,000                      - 

86  MC  Pending  Sludge Lagoon Liner Replacement/Repair              75,000            60,000            15,000 

88  MC  IWMP Reclamation Projects (Placeholder)                        -          (3,250)          146,750 

92 MC 20500-05 4290 / 
4460

Marsh Pond Vegetation Removal & Long-Term Vegetation Management 
Plan

                       -          171,115 

96  MC  18500-02 4332  NBWRA Water Grant for Reclamation - prior year close out            3,250                3,250              3,250                      - 

97  MC  20500-02 4459 / 
4262

 Reclamation Storage Pond Valves & Transfer Boxes - 3 catwalks                       -            1,180                1,180              1,180                      - 

 Subtotal:             960,000      (144,955)              36,253          345,824          810,337 

TREATMENT PLANT (INCL. RECYCLED WATER)

101 MC 21100-01 4861 Operations ControlCenter (OCC) & Admin Building Design         1,525,000              56,835            80,835        1,444,165 

102 MC 21600-07 4862 Digester Inspection & Coating Improvement            300,000      (267,896)            30,000              2,104 

103 MC 21600-06 4846  Digester Room MCC #2 Upgrade Design & Construction            682,000              26,438          100,000          593,884 

104 MC 20600-04 4328  Flow Equalization Basin Design and Construction            375,000          100,000        3,446,113 

105 MC  22600-01 4878  Primary Clarifier #1 Repair            300,000            50,000          250,000 

106 MC 21600-08 4848  Grit Chambers Coating & Auger Rebuild            300,000      (100,000)                   688          200,000                     0 

107 MC 21600-11 4851  Annual Plant Paving at Various Locations              60,000            60,000                      - 

108 MC 21600-09 4849  Plant Lighting Improvements and Other Electrical Enhan.              50,000            50,000            50,000 

109 MC  21600-15 4855  Misc Plant Equipment Demolition & Disposal              30,000        (29,482)                   221                 221                 297 

110 GP  21600-12 4852  Maintenance Shop & Locker Room Improvements              50,000            50,000 

111 MC Pending  Secondary Digester Piping Project              60,000            60,000                      - 

112 MC 23500-05 4262  Center Pivot No. 1 Replacement        200,000          174,500            25,500 

 Subtotal:          3,732,000      (197,378)              84,181          905,556        5,862,063 

TOTAL PLANNING, FLEET, COLLECTION , RECLAMATION, & TREATMENT PROJECTS (Non-Financed)

 Total (Non-Financed):       11,711,626                   -            559,512       4,289,900      12,263,213 

FINANCED AND BOND PROJECTS

129 MC  12600-07 & 
16650-02 

4501 
& 

4225

 Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade & Recycled Water Expan.         8,606,442         2,777,653       7,921,623        1,238,193 

130 MC  Operations Control Center Building Construction & Soft Costs          3,000,000        3,000,000 

 Subtotal:        11,606,442                   -         2,777,653       7,921,623        4,238,193 

GRAND TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY:       23,318,068                   -         3,337,165     12,211,523      16,501,406 

Page 2 of 2 Printed: 2/9/2023 6:26 AM101



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\02162023\ASR Sewer Rate Parameters with Hildebrand.docx Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager 
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: February 16, 2023 

Re: Discussion on Sewer Rate Study Parameters with Hildebrand Consulting 

Item Type:   Consent   Action          Information    X Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes          No  (See attached) Not Applicable       X     . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to meet with Hildebrand Consulting and discuss parameters on updating the District’s 
financial plan and evaluation of the structure of the existing sewer user charges. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District awarded contract to Hildebrand Consulting to conduct a 
sewer user charge cost of service and rate study. The study will assess and evaluate the District’s 
existing rate structure and rate policies, review current methodology, and make recommendations 
for potential alternative methods if needed.  
 
Staff has met with Mark Hildebrand and provided information that will be used to help develop a 
10-year financial management plan that will be used to be develop recommendations for a four 
year rate study that will cover fiscal years 2023-24 to 2026-27. 
 
It is prudent for the Board to confirm the study objectives of the District early in the rate setting 
process. We will discuss preliminary findings on the impact of the capital spending program on 
future revenue requirements. The Board will also be asked to share any thoughts or concerns with 
the existing rate structure. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
On January 19, 2023, the Board awarded contract to Hildebrand Consulting to conduct a Sewer 
User Charge Cost for Service and Rate Study. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
No additional impact. The consultant costs for this meeting are included in the contract previously 
awarded. 

Item Number_______3.7_______ 

GM Review   ______CP________ 

102

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


 

 

 Page 1 of 1 

   Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

To: Board of Directors 

From: Teri Lerch, Executive Assistant/Board Secretary 
   (415) 526-1510; tlerch@lgvsd.org 

Mtg. Date: February 16, 2023 

Re: Approve Ordinance 191 Changing Start Time of Regular Meetings 

Item Type:   Consent    Action      X  Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No     (See attached) Not Applicable     X        . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Attached for Board approval is Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Ordinance 191 changing the 
Board Meeting start time to 4:30 pm. 
 
BACKGROUND  
The Board had requested to review the start time of Board meetings.  
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
On January 5, 2023, Board reviewed B-140 (Board Meetings) and Ordinance 184 (attached) and 
requested they be brought back for Board approval. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
N/A 

Item Number_______4______ 

GM Review   _____CP_______ 

 

103



 

Ordinance No. 191  Page 1 of 2 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 

 

ORDINANCE 191 

AN ORDINANCE OF AMENDING TITLE 1, CHAPTER 2 OF THE 

ORDINANCE CODE OF THE LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 

TIME AND PLACE FOR REGULAR MEETINGS 

 

The Board of Directors of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, Marin County, 

California, does ordain as follows: 

 

ARTICLE I. 

The contents of Title 1, Chapter 2, Time and Place for Regular Meetings, Article I, 

Meetings, Section 101, Regular Meetings, is amended to read as follows: 

“ARTICLE I. MEETINGS 

 Section 101. Regular Meetings.  The Regular Meetings of the Las 

Gallinas Valley Sanitary District shall be held on the first and third Thursdays of 

each and every calendar month starting at 4:30 pm. 

***** 

The remainder of Section 101, which encompasses subsections (a) and (b) shall remain 

the same. 

ARTICLE 2. ADOPTION AND NOTIFICATION 

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force either seven (7) days from the date of its 

passage and publication or as of February 23. 2023, whichever is later.  The Ordinance or 

a summary of it shall be published once, with the names of the members of the Board of 

Directors of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District of Marin County, California, voting 

for and against the same in the Marin Independent Journal, a newspaper of general 

circulation published in the County of Marin. A certified copy of the full text of the 

proposed regulation or ordinance or proposed amendment to same shall be posted in the 

office of the clerk of the board, along with the names of those board members voting for 

and against the ordinance. 

104



 

Ordinance No. 191  Page 2 of 2 

 

************** 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of the Ordinance duly 

and regularly passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Las Gallinas Valley 

Sanitary District of Marin County, California, at a meeting hereof held on February 16, 

2023  by the following vote of members thereof: 

 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

__________________________________ 

Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary  

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

 

APPROVED: 

 

______________________________    

Megan Clark, Board President    (seal) 

105



106



107



108



 

 
 

 

2/16/2023 
 

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
CLARK 

NBWA Board Committee, 2023 Operations Control Center 
Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 

FORD 
NBWRA, 2023 Operations Control Center Ad Hoc 
Committee, 2023 McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee,  2023 
Fleet Management Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports  
 

MURRAY 
Marin LAFCO, CASA Energy Committee, 2023 Biosolids Ad 
Hoc Committee,  Other Reports  
  

ROBARDS 
Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, 2023 Engineering 
Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,  2023 McInnis Marsh Ad 
Hoc Committee, Other Reports  

 
YEZMAN 

Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Marin Special Districts Association, 
2023 Ad Hoc Engineering Sub-Committee re: STPURWE, 
2022 Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5 

109



                                                                                  AGENDA ITEM 6A 
                                                                                 DATE: FEBRUARY 16, 2023             

REVISED 06012021 

 
 

BOARD MEMBER 

 MEETING ATTENDANCE REQUEST 
 

 

Date:___________Name:__________________________________________________ 

 

I would like to attend the __________________________________________Meeting 

of _____________________________________________________________________ 

To be held on the ______ day of ___________ from ________ a.m. / p.m. to 

_______day of ___________ from  _________ a.m. / p.m. 

Location of meeting:____________________________________________________ 

Actual meeting date(s):____________________________________________________ 

Meeting Type: (In person/Webinar/Conference)_______________________________ 

Purpose of Meeting:______________________________________________________  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Meeting relevance to District:__________________________________________  

                  YES     NO 

Request assistance from Board Secretary to register for Conference:          

 

Frequency of Meeting: ____________________________________________________ 

 

Estimated Costs of Travel (if applicable):____________________________________ 

 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Date submitted to Board Secretary:________________________________________ 

 

Board approval obtained on Date:_________________________________________ 

 

Please submit this form to the Board Secretary no later than 1 week  prior to the 

Board Meeting.  

 

  

110



 

 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\02162023\Board Agenda Item Requests.docx 

2/16/2023 
 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM REQUESTS 
 

Agenda Item 6B 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report 

□ Presentation 

 

111



112



113



114



115



116



117



 

 
 

 

2/16/2023 
 

CLOSED SESSION 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 8 

118


	Agenda 02162023
	1 Public Comment
	2A Board Minutes 02022023
	2B Draft Warrant List 02162023
	2C Board Compensation January 2023
	2D Yezman Conference Request
	2E Clark CSDA Summit Request
	2F Resolution 2023-2299 Board Policies B-140 B170 O-20 O-30
	2G RESOLUTION 2023-2300 Remote Meetings
	2H Labor Negotiators of the District
	3.1 General Manager Report
	3.2 Harassment Prevention Policy B-180
	3.3 Collections  Oct - Dec  2022 Report
	3.4  Operations Oct -Dec 2022 Report
	3.5 Second  QTR Treasurer's Report December 2022
	2nd QTR Treasures Report December 2022.pdf
	2nd QTR Treasurers Report Dec 2022-signed
	Quarterly Interest LAID period ending Dec 31, 2022
	pmia-laif_perform Dec 2022
	CD - 715679
	CD -716073
	P&L Budget vs  Actuals Dec 2022


	3.6 Mid-Year Budget Review
	Mid-Year Budget Report.pdf
	0_Mid Year Budget Review - coverpage 2022-23
	1_BalanceStatement
	2_Revenue
	3_Budget Summary
	3_Operating Compact
	4_Debt Service
	5_Reserves
	6_Restricted
	7_Capital Projects FY 22-23


	3.7 Sewer Rate Parameters with Hildebrand
	4  Board Ordinance 191
	5 Board Member Reports
	6A Board Member Meeting Attendance Request
	6B Board Agenda Item Requests
	7 Various Industry Articles
	8 Closed Session



